
20190320 

AGENDA PACKET 
03/20/19 REGULAR MEETING 



 
 

 
                        PAGE 1 OF 2 

 

 

 
 

 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
 THE REGIONAL GOVERNMENT OF CAPE COD 

 Board of Regional Commissioners 

COMMISSIONERS 
RONALD R. BEATY, Barnstable 
RONALD BERGSTROM, Chatham 
MARY PAT FLYNN, Falmouth 
  

          
 
         

    
 
   

 
 
 

 
 
 
Please note the addition of a new Items 8a & 8b, the removal of duplicate 
items, and the re-lettering of subsequent items 
 
1. Call to Order  

   
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
3. Moment of Silence   
 
4. Public Comment 
 
5. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Regular Meeting of March 13, 2019 
 
6. General Business  
 
7. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair 
 
8. Commissioners’ Actions 
 

a. Authorizing the acceptance of the Barnstable County Plan for the Early 
Retirment Incentive Program in accordance with Chapter 330 of the Acts 
of 2018, as approved by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Employee 
Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC), as submitted by the 
County Administrator 
 

b. Authorizing Special Counsel to add additional Counsel in the matter of 
Barnstable County v. 3M Company, et al. 

3/18/19 @ 9:55 A.M. 

March 20, 2019 
 
10:00 A.M. 
 
East Wing Conference Room 
Old Jail Building 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630 

DATE: 
 
TIME: 
 
PLACE: 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

3/18/19 @ 12:30 A.M. 



Reasonable accommodations for people with disabilities are available upon request. Please contact Justyna Marczak, Barnstable 
County ADA Coordinator at jmarczak@barnstablecounty.org or call 508-375-6646 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting The 
County Commissioners’ meeting may be viewed in real time at https://www.youtube.com/user/BarnstableCounty, 
https://www.barnstablecounty.org/ 
 

 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630                               p.   (508) 375-6648     f. (508) 375-4136 

 
 
 
                  MARCH 20, 2019                                                                                                                            REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
                  10:00 A.M.                        PAGE 2 OF 2 
                       
       
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
    

 
      
 
 

 
c. Authorizing the approval of a reimbursement request from Kristy 

Senatori, Executive Director of the Cape Cod Commission, for the period 
of November 15, 2018 through February 27, 2019 

 
d. Authorizing the award of contracts to Nauset Disposal and MA Frazier 

Disposal for the service and maintenance of portable toilets for the Towns 
of Brewster, Eastham and Yarmouth 

 
e. Authorizing the execution of a contract with Aggregate Industries for 

Roadway Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 
1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year 
 

f. Authorizing the execution of a contract with Cape Cod Aggregates, Corp. 
for Roadway Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of 
April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year 
 

g. Authorizing the creation of a new fund for a grant from the 
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection to the County 
Health and Environment Department, for a Project on Reducing 
Phosphorus Impacts from Septic Systems Near Freshwater Lakes and 
Ponds-Defining BMPs in the amount of $96,603.54, through June 30, 
2021 

 
h. Authorizing the execution of a cooperative agreement with the Town of 

Chatham to do and perform all dredge related work at Stage Harbor  
 

i. Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic 
Betterments 

 
9. Commissioners’ Reports  
 
10. County Administrator and Staff Reports 
 
11. Adjournment 

https://www.youtube.com/user/BarnstableCounty
https://www.barnstablecounty.org/


20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5a 
 

               Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting of March 13, 2019 

  



 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

 
 
 
BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS   PAGE 1 OF 6  

   

 
Barnstable, ss. 
 
At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners, held in the 
Superior Courthouse in Barnstable, on the thirteenth day of March, A.D. 2019 
 
 
Board Regional Commissioners: 
 
Ronald R. Beaty   Present 
 
Ronald Bergstrom  Present 
 
Mary Pat Flynn   Present  
 
 
Assembly of Delegates: 
 
John Ohman    Delegate, Town of Dennis 
 
 
 
Staff Present: 
 
Jack Yunits   County Administrator 
 
Justyna Marczak Human Resources Director 
 
Janice O’Connell County Clerk/Assembly Clerk 
 
Don Reynolds Director, Fire Rescue Training Academy 
 
Owen Fletcher   Executive Assistant, Administration 
 
Andrew Platt AmeriCorps Cape Cod Program Coordinator, Resource 

Development Office 
 
Bill Traverse Director, Information Technology 
 
Laura Brown IT Systems Administrator, Information Technology 
 
Chris Burt   Deputy Director, Information Technology 
 
Ian Roberts   Technical Support Specialist, Information Technology 
 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                      REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 13, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 2 OF 6 
 

1. Call to Order  
 
Chairman Bergstrom called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M. 
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 

3. Moment of Silence  
 
 
4. Public Comment    

 
No members of the public provided comment. 

 
 
5. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Regular Meeting of March 6, 2019 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve the regular meeting minutes of Regular 
Meeting of March 6, 2019 as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-
0-0 
 

b. Executive Session of March 6, 2019 
 

Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve and release the minutes of the Executive 
Session of the Board of Regional Commissioners’ Regular Meeting of March 6, 
2019 as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

  
 

6. General Business  
 

a. Discussion on adopting the County’s website as the official method of posting 
notices for meetings of the Board of Regional Commissioners pursuant to Title 
940 of the Code of Massachusetts Regulations, section 29.03(2)(b) 
 
There was a lengthy discussion about the possible technical challenges of changing 
the posting location. The Board expressed concern regarding the website crashing. 
This would require the Board to cancel and re-post the meeting. The Board decided 
to take no action at this time and possibly reconsider the item later. 

 
7. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair 

 
There was no new business at this meeting. 

 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                      REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 13, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 3 OF 6 
 

 
8. Commissioners’ Actions 
 

a. Authorizing the approval of a reimbursement request from Jack Yunits, 
County Administrator, for the period of January 7, 2019 through March 5, 
2019 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve a reimbursement request from Jack 
Yunits, County Administrator, for the period of January 7, 2019 through March 5, 
2019 as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 

b. Authorizing the appointment of Joshua Mason to the Barnstable County 
HOME Consortium, as the representative for the Town of Dennis, replacing 
James Kyrimes, for an unexpired term through January 31, 2020, as 
recommended by the Dennis Board of Selectmen 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to appoint Joshua Mason to the Barnstable County 
HOME Consortium, as the representative for the Town of Dennis, replacing James 
Kyrimes, for an unexpired term through January 31, 2020, as recommended by the 
Dennis Board of Selectmen as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-
0-0 
 

c. Authorizing the execution of a cooperative agreement with the Town of Dennis 
to do and perform all dredge related work at Approach Channel for an 
amount not to exceed $11,250.00 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of a cooperative 
agreement with the Town of Dennis to do and perform all dredge related work at 
Approach Channel for an amount not to exceed $11,250.00 as presented, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
Mr. Yunits detailed the current dredge schedule to the Board. 
 

d. Authorizing the execution of a cooperative agreement with the Town of 
Yarmouth to do and perform all dredge related work at Approach Channel 
for an amount not to exceed $11,250.00 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of a cooperative 
agreement with the Town of Yarmouth to do and perform all dredge related work 
at Approach Channel for an amount not to exceed $11,250.00, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
Mr. Yunits explained that the body of water in this item was the same as the body 
in Item 8c, but each town needed to have a separate agreement with the County. 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                      REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 13, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 4 OF 6 
 

e. Authorizing the execution of a cooperative agreement with the Town of Truro 
to do and perform all dredge related work in Pamet Harbor Basin for an 
amount not to exceed $90,000.00 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of a cooperative 
agreement with the Town of Truro to do and perform all dredge related work in 
Pamet Harbor Basin for an amount not to exceed $90,000.00, as presented, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 

f. Authorizing the execution of a Subaward Agreement with the Center for 
Coastal Studies in the amount of $288,200.00 through June 30, 2021 for the 
Seafloor Mapping Program 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of a Subaward 
Agreement with the Center for Coastal Studies in the amount of $288,200.00 
through June 30, 2021 for the Seafloor Mapping Program, as presented, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
Mr. Yunits explained the need for the grant. He also noted the collaborative nature 
of the work, including the Cooperative Extension and Cape Cod Commission, as 
well as the Center for Coastal Studies. He further noted the importance of the grant 
for the study of flooding. Finally, he noted the funding generated from a grant, and 
the fact that the work would not cost the County funds. 
 

g. Authorizing the execution of amendments to mortgages and security 
agreements with 704 Falmouth Housing Corporation, LLC on property 
located at 587 Gifford Street in the town of Falmouth 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of amendments to 
mortgages and security agreements with 704 Falmouth Housing Corporation, LLC 
on property located at 587 Gifford Street in the town of Falmouth, as presented, 
2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 

h. Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the Chair to execute Certificates for 
Dissolving Septic Betterments, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, 
approved 3-0-0 
 

9. Commissioners’ Reports 
 

There were no Commissioner reports. 
 
 
10. County Administrator and Staff Reports 

 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                      REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 13, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 5 OF 6 
 

Mr. Yunits reported on the use of the new room, and the previous week’s meeting with the 
Cape Cod State Legislative Delegation. He also spoke of the expectation of other groups 
using the room. He noted that Ms. Marczak has set up a training with Maya for County 
Supervisors. The Board and Mr. Yunits thanked Facilities Department for their work in 
creating the space. He discussed the maintenance agreement with the vendor. 

 
11. Adjournment 
 

Barnstable, ss. at 10:27 A.M. on this thirteenth day of March A.D. 2019, Commissioner Beaty 
made a motion to adjourn, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  

 
List of Documents: 
 

• Draft minutes of the Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting of March 6, 2019 
• Draft Minutes of the Executive Session of the Board of Regional Commissioners’ Regular 

Meeting of March 6, 2019 
• Memorandum dated March 12, 2019 to the County Commissioners from Jack Yunits, 

County Administrator, regarding Adopting the County’s website as the Official Method of 
Posting 

• Reimbursement request from Jack Yunits, County Administrator, for the period of January 
7, 2019 through March 5, 2019 

• Title 940 of the Code of Massachusetts Regulations, Section 29.03 
• Memorandum dated March 6, 2019 to the County Commissioners from Renie Hamman, 

HOME Program Manager, regarding HOME Consortium Advisory Council and 
attachments 

• Cooperative agreement with the Town of Dennis to do and perform all dredge related work 
at Approach Channel for an amount not to exceed $11,250.00 

• Cooperative agreement with the Town of Yarmouth to do and perform all dredge related 
work at Approach Channel for an amount not to exceed $11,250.00 

• Cooperative agreement with the Town of Truro to do and perform all dredge related work 
in Pamet Harbor Basin for an amount not to exceed $90,000.00 

• Subaward Agreement with the Center for Coastal Studies in the amount of $288,200.00 
through June 30, 2021 for the Seafloor Mapping Program 

• Amendments to mortgages and security agreements with 704 Falmouth Housing 
Corporation, LLC on property located at 587 Gifford Street in the town of Falmouth and 
attachments 

• Memorandum dated March 12, 2019 to the County Commissioners from the Community 
Septic Management Loan Program regarding Certificates for Dissolving Septic 
Betterments 

 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                      REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                               MARCH 13, 2019      
                                  
                                       
                                  
 

 

 

  PAGE 6 OF 6 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Janice O’Connell, Regional Clerk 

The foregoing records have been read and approved, March     , 2018.  

A true copy, attest: 

Approved, Board of Regional Commissioners: 
 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald Bergstrom, Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 

Date 



20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8a 
 

Authorizing the acceptance of the Barnstable County Plan for the Early 
Retirement Incentive Program in accordance with Chapter 330 of the Acts of 
2018, as approved by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Employee 
Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC), as submitted by the County 
Administrator 

  



  

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE 
3195 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 
 

Jack T. Yunits, Jr. 
County Administrator 
Cell: (508) 510-1127 
Office: (508) 375-6771 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 
jack.yunits@barnstablecounty.org 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE: March 18, 2019 
TO: County Commissioners 
FROM: Jack Yunits, County Administrator 
SUBJECT: Barnstable County Plan for the Early Retirement Incentive Program 
  

 
Please authorize the acceptance of the Barnstable County Plan for the Early Retirement Incentive Program 
in accordance with Chapter 330 of the Acts of 2018, as approved by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). 
 
 Approved: 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Date 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 



PERAC 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ PUBLIC EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT ADMINISTRATION COMMISSION 

PHILIP Y. BROWN, ESQ., Chairman JOHN W. PARSONS, ESQ., Executive Director 

Auditor SUZANNE M. BUMP ~ KATHLEEN M. FALCON ~ KATE FITZPATRICK ~ JAMES M. MACHADO ~ ROBERT B. McCARTHY ~ JENNIFER F. SULLIVAN 

March 15, 2019 

Jack T. Yunits, Jr. 

County Administrator, Barnstable County 

Superior Court House 

3195 Main Street, PO Box 427 

Barnstable, MA 02634 

Dear Mr. Yunits: 

Received 
MAR 1 ~ 2019 

BarnstaAle Coonryr Cantrt~s 

We are in receipt of the Barnstable County plan for the early retirement incentive program in 

accordance with Chapter 330 of the Acts of 2018. 

The plan you have submitted is consistent with the intent of the statute and you may continue 

with the process for establishing an early retirement incentive program for the employees of 

Barnstable County. 

The next step in the process would be to submit a plan to the Board of County Commissioners 

for acceptance no later than the next meeting of the Board at which the plan can practicably be 

submitted. If accepted, you must publish the plan and make it available to employees within 1 

month after its acceptance. You must require employees to participate within 2 months of the 

plan's publication. At that point you must determine which applicants shall be allowed to 

participate in the program and notify them within 1 month of the application deadline. Finally, 

those employees who participate in the program must be required to retire within 2 months of 

notification of acceptance. 

As you continue to implement your early retirement incentiv, p • gr. , we will be available to 

assist as needed. 

cc: Mary T. McIsaac, Finance Director 

Barnstable County Retirement Board 

JWP/keb 
p:\actuaria\general\barnstable county eri.doc 

W. Parsons, Esq. 

E ~ cutive Director 

FIVE MIDDLESEX AVENUE, SUITE 304 ~ SOMERVILLE, MA 02145 A 

PH 617666 4446 ~ FAX 617628 4002 ~ TTY 617 591 8917 ~ WWW.MASS.GOV/PERAC ~~ 



��������� ��		
���������	����������������

����	��������
	������ ��!����	���		
�����	����	���������������� ���

"#$%&'()*+,-./$0122(3435678639:;8<;4=3473>:?>76;>7@746;45746;A7B>C=>3@DC>93>48639:75CE46?FGHIJHKLMJHNOPJQHRHKLJHLKNSTUVHTWXHYZHVHKJLJI[HVIK\HKHZL]̂TUZJLVVH_O]HǸLKNOPJQHLUJQTZIJPTWJQHVL_H̀LVWT]]TaVb8756;C4cF4defgehiejklgkminoipqegdkrmsdtipqegdkuudtqhjvepwcxxdtehpjqeidtyzcz{ehpqdnke|qd}}giigdkpwidt9jwkiejo~pqdnke|}j|piejo~gihjklg}v~p}pkejkpjw~|wpegwp}pkegkqpkeg�pvwdmwj}tdwqdnke|p}v~d|ppijidehpwfgipvwd�glplgkijglipqegdkuudtijglqhjvepwcxxjklino�pqeedehptd~~dfgkmvwd�gigdki�rgsehjeehpqdnke|jl}gkgiewjedwihj~~ino}gejv~jkedehpvno~gqp}v~d|ppjl}gkgiewjegdkqd}}giigdktdwjvvwd�j~kde~jepwehjky}dkehijtepwehppttpqeg�pljepdtehgijqe�rggsjtepwehjev~jkhjioppkjvvwd�pl{ehjeehpqdnke|jl}gkgiewjedwihj~~ino}geehpv~jkedehpodjwldtqdnke|qd}}giigdkpwitdwjqqpvejkqpjeehpkp�e}ppegkmdtehjeodjwllnwgkmfhgqhehpv~jkqjkopvwjqegqj~~|ino}geepl�rgggskde~jepwehjkc}dkehjtepwehpv~jkgijqqpveplo|ehpodjwldtqdnke|qd}}giigdkpwi{ehjeehpqdnke|jl}gkgiewjedwvno~gihjkl}j�pehpjvvwd�plv~jkj�jg~jo~pedehpp}v~d|ppi�



��������� ��		
���������	����������������

����	��������
	������ ��!����	���		
�����	����	���������������� ���

̂_]̀



BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
OFFICE OF COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUPERIOR COURTHOUSE 

3195 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX 427 

BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

February 17, 2019 

VIA Email and First-Class mail 

John W. Parsons, Esq. 

Executive Director 

PERAC 

5 Middlesex Avenue Suite 304 

Somerville, MA 02145 

Re: Barnstable County ERIP 

Dear Mr. Parsons, 

Jsck T. Yunits, Jr. 

Cowty Administrator 

Cell: (508) 510-1127 
Office: (508) 375-6771 
Fax: (508)362-4136 

jack.yunits@bamstablecounty.org 

In accordance with Section 1.A, Barnstable hereby submits the Early Retirement Plan for the approval of the 

Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). 

On November 8, 2017 the bill to allow Barnstable County to offer an Early retirement Incentive Program was 

filed by Timothy R. Whalen of Brewster and others. With one amendment to the original filing the bill known as 

H.4107 was signed by Governor Baker on December 28, 2018. 

The County labored diligently with all interested legislators and Committees, and James H. Quirk, Attorney for 

the Barnstable County Retirement Board and consulted with the Public Employees Retirement Administration 

Commission during the process. The County considers this legislation to be a vital component in its efforts re-

organize and streamline the organization and to reduce personnel costs and related unfunded liabilities. 

Thank you in advance for your time. Please do not hesitate to contact me at 508-510-1127 or 

jack.yunits(a~barnstablecounty. org. 

ary T. McIsaac, Finance Director 



~U V lJ 1~~~rlt~ 

~ SLY ~~TI~~M~i"T I~1(~~NTI~~ ~'~Q~~ l~ 

~~$~~~~Y ~~ 1 ~ 



I. Introduction 

II. Eligibility 

III. Restrictions 

IV. Excess Liability 

V. Historical Costs 

VI. Legislation 

VII. Other Requirements 

VIII. Other Considerations 

IX. Appendix 

H.4107-An Act to Establish an Early Incentive Program for 

Barnstable County (as amended) 



~S~D~~~~~~~ 

Barnstable County is committed to providing Regional Services to the towns and the people of Cape Cod 
in the most efficient and reliable manner within a reasonably framed budget. By the very nature of a 
regional government, Barnstable County is a "service organization", heavily invested in employment of 
personnel to accomplish this. 

As most municipal entities can attest it has become increasingly difficult to sustain the personnel costs 
and the future unfunded liabilities related to the workforce. With double-digit inflation in health care and 
the high salaries of an aging workforce we have reached an unsustainable level of operation. An analysis 
of the approved budgets for FY2014 to FY2019 shows the percentage of combined salaries and fringes to 
the total budgets to be in the range of 71.5% - 75.4%. To ensure that the organization continues to stay 
the course of its core mission and fulfill its commitment to the towns and people of the region, the 
administration must take the necessary steps to examine the entire operation, analyze both the 
controllable and non-controllable component costs and commit to a plan of action to reach a more stable 
financial position and guarantee the future. This is easier said than done. 

Barnstable County has a greater burden than most, being responsible for the payment of the liability for 
the retirees of the Sheriff's Department which moved under the control of the Commonwealth with 
legislation effective January 1, 2010. The assessment in FY2019 is $1,506,576. Segal Consulting in its latest 
valuation projected annual increases of 6.30% in the assessment through FY2035, the final year of the 
funding schedule and there is no contribution from the Commonwealth. 

Communities have implemented changes to address these rising costs. Reduction of personnel through 

attrition, reorganization, consolidations and the subcontracting of some services have proved successful. 
The personnel reductions have caused reductions in pension and OPEB liabilities as well. Healthcare costs 
have been addressed by eliminating the more expensive health plans, changing plan designs, offering 

Health Savings Accounts (known as HSAs) and requiring the employees to pay a greater percentage of 

premiums. Some of these changes also reduce the OPEB liability reported on the financial statements. 

The offering of an early retirement incentive program has been utilized in past years for the same reason. 
Over and over we have seen and heard that these programs are not successful and do nothing to 
invigorate and improve an organization. One would have to examine each case to determine the reasons 
why the result did not meet the expectation but one thing is clear; if the organization keeps to its course, 

makes the tough decisions and stands by them, manages the operation by this mandate and continually 
measures progress and results adapting as necessary to stay the course, success can be achieved. 



An offer of an early retirement is restricted to eligible employees. An employee may be eligible if they 

meet the following requirements and additionally the County reserves the right to limit participants. 

I. The employee is actively employed by Barnstable County on the date of the application and 

the retirement date. 

II. The employee is an active member of the Barnstable County Retirement System making 

regular payroll contributions on the application date and the retirement date. 

III. The employee must be vested in the retirement system as follows: 

a. Confirmed with a minimum of fifteen (15) years of credible service and at least SS years 

of age or 

b. Confirmed with twenty years of credible service. 

IV. The employee must be a Group 1 member in service. 

~~~~ ~~ ~ 

Participation in an offering of an early retirement is further restricted as follows: 

I. Elected officials of any sub-division of Barnstable County are not eligible. 

II. Employees of the Barnstable County Retirement Association are not eligible. 

III. Employees of the Barnstable County Fire Training Academy are not eligible. 

IV. Any active employee who has achieved maximum age and maximum years of credible 

service is not eligible. 

V. Employees who are paid from Federal grants are not eligible. 



~~ ~~ ~~~~ 

The gains achieved by an offering of an early incentive program to employees are offset by the excess 

liability placed on the employer. Excess liability refers to the difference in cost of a retiree between 

original cost of retirement (with no incentive) and the cost of the retiree participating in an early 

retirement incentive offering. 

The excess liability is calculated by a licensed actuary. Upon the plan's approval and the identification of 

the participants the excess liability is confirmed and apportioned over the next ten years of the 

employers' annual retirement assessment. In past years, certain liabilities calculated for other offerings, 

were apportioned over the entire funding schedule which currently runs through 2035. 

Segal Consulting was engaged to make projections of the excess liability for Barnstable County. 

Employee data, some of which was provided by the Barnstable County Retirement Association, was 

provided by the County to Segal Consulting. Segal analyzed the data and made projections for a 

maximum of 20 participants prioritized by the years of credible service of each, the average cost of 

eligible employees, and the employees with the greatest excess liability. The projected excess liability 

ranged from $230K to $280K based on a conservative set of assumptions 

These numbers are estimates based on assumptions of participation. Not ali eligible employees will 

participate. The excess liability will be born be the County general operations, the Dredge Fund, the 

Septic Loan Fund, and the Cape Cod Commission according to management. The administration may 

consider an increase in the maximum number of participants. 



f~ 

Employees of Barnstable County have participated in early retirement incentive programs in the past. 

The programs introduced in 2002 and 2003 were structured differently and in the case of the 2002 at 

least, it has been suggested that employers did not have enough control over the design and 

implementation ending up with an unlimited number of retirees, no cost control and a liability that 

stretched through 2035 which is the end of the funding schedule. 

The numbers for Barnstable County have played out as follows: 

Early Retirement Incentive Program — 2002 
Program Participants 28 

Group 1: County Hospital - 2 
County —All Other - 9 

Group 2: County —All Other- 1 
Group 4: County —Sheriff's Dept.- 16 

FY2017 Chargesfor all ERI participants, benefits payable to retirees, spouses and others 
County Hospital $7,722 
County —All Other $89,680 
Sheriff's Dept. *The Retiree Sheriff 2002 ERI is included in the total of 

the County Sheriff Liability, reported in 2017 at 
$1,359,250. 

Segal Consulting projected the increase thru 2035 to rise at 6.30% annually. 

Early Retirement Incentive Program — 2003 
Program Participants 6 

Group 1: County —All Other- 6 

FY2017 Charges for all ERI participants, benefits payable to retirees, spouses and others 
County —All Other $28,320 

Segal Consulting projected the increase thru 2035 to rise at 6.30% annually. 

Barnstable County did not participate in the 2010 Early Retirement Incentive Program. The excess 

liability for the 2010 offering is scheduled to be repaid in 10 years, the final payment due by the 

participating employers in 2022. 



Numerous cities, towns, districts and other governmental units joined the Commonwealth in past early 

retirement incentive programs. The County joined in the offerings of 2002 and 2003. (See Historical 

Costs). There was an early retirement incentive program in 2010. Barnstable County had no participants. 

Early retirement incentive programs are enabled by legislation. The plan must be submitted to the 

Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC) for approval. Additionally, 

participating employees are required to be actively employed and contributing members of the system 

to which the employer belongs on the dates of application and retirement. No employee who is fully 

vested can participate as there is no benefit to the employee and no savings to the employer. Some 

programs limit the number accepted into the program and further limit the numbers by department. In 

some instances, positions are identified to be so critical to the employer that they cannot be included in 

the program however we usually see this where the program further requires the elimination of vacated 

positions. 

Program restrictions are management decisions based on the strategic plan for the organization, the 

projection of future costs and affordability. Early retirement incentive programs also can help avoid 

workforce reductions by layoffs. 

Legislated early retirement incentive programs are usually date driven from the date of the bill's 

passage. 

Our review of prior legislation included but was not limited to the following: 

H.2566 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE 

MASSACHUSETTS PORT AUTHORITY (190r") 

5.1402 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE FOR STATE EMPLOYEES (189r") 

H.61 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM (189TH) 

H.3189 AN ACT PROVIDING FOR AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM (189r") 

H.4107 An Act to Establish an Early Retirement Incentive Program for Barnstable County was passed 

by our legislators and signed by Governor Baker on December 28t'', 2018. 



~~~~ 
r.~ r ~~ 

Eligible employees will be further considered only if an application is submitted by the established 
deadline, in proper form and complete. 

Each employee must agree to meet with the HR Assistant Director of the County within the time frame 
prescribed by the County as a condition of participation in the program. 

Each employee must attend a counseling session with the Barnstable County Retirement Association 
within the time frame prescribed by the County. The Barnstable County Retirement Association will 
confirm the meetings. 

Each employee must agree to file an application for asuper-annuation retirement with the Barnstable 
County Retirement Association as a condition of participation in the program. 

~~ <<, 

Based on further management discussions and to assure a successful early retirement incentive 
program, other considerations will be deliberated and incorporated into the management plan going 

forward . 

These other considerations will be the foundation of the budget for personnel and fringes in future 
years and may include such mandates as: 

The exhaustive review of how departments are structured and staffed to increase 
efficiencies, eliminate redundancies, and focus back on the mission of the County by 
Charter. 

The adoption of a strict hiring policy which requires the assessment of need and 
affordability. 

The requirement that no department or division which provides services to the towns 
exceeds cost limitations established by the County in their annual budget. 
Increasing the contribution rates for health, dental and life insurances for new employees. 
Modification of plan designs for certain health plans, including the increases of co-pays and 
deductibles. 
The elimination of certain high cost plans for new employees. 
The periodic review of certain practices for increases and stipends. 
The periodic review of insurance for elected officials. 



~~ ~G'T ~0~ £5~~~1~~~~ ~~V" ~.LY ~t~T1~~~1V"I` 1N~ ~11~ ~~a~~ ~ ~0~~ 

~~~1iS~~~1 ~ CQ~L~NTY 





IG/L 1/LV 10 ulll i I.Y 1 V I 

HOUSE DOCKET, NO. 4349 FILED ON: 11/8/2017 

HOUSE . . . . No. 4107 

~L~je ~ommonboeait~j of ~asgac~jugettg 

PRESENTED BY: 

Timothy R. Whelan 

To the Honorable Senate and House of Representatives of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in General 

Court assembled: 

The undersigned legislators and/or citizens respectfully petition for the adoption of the accompanying bill: 

An Act To Establish an Early Retirement Incentive Program for Barnstable County. 

PETITION OF: 

NAME: ~ DISTRICT~ADDRESS: 

Timothy R. Whelan 1st Barnstable 

William L. Crocker, Jr. 2nd Barnstable 

Randy Hunt Sth Barnstable 

Viriato M. deMacedo Plymouth and Barnstable 

Sarah K. Peake 4th Barnstable 

Julian Cyr Cape and Islands 

David T. Veira 3rd Barnstable 

HOUSE DOCKET, NO. 4349 FILED ON: 11/8/2017 

HOUSE   No. 4107 
By Mr. Whelan of Brewster, a petition (subject to Joint Rules 12 and 7A) of Timothy R. Whelan 

and others for legislation to establish an early retirement incentive program for Barnstable 

County. Public Service. 

~~je ~tCommon~ueart~j of ~ag~ac~jugett~ 

In the One Hundred and Ninetieth General Court 
(2017-2018) 

An Act To Establish an Early Retirement Incentive Program for Barnstable County. 

Be it e~iacted by the Senate atzd House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and by the authorit)~ of the same, as 

follows: 

https://malegislature.gov/Bills/190/H4107 1/2 



12/21 /"1018 rsm n.4 iui 

Section 1. Notwithstanding subsection (g) of section 66 of chapter 188 of the Acts of 2010 to the 

contrary, the County Commissioners of the County of Barnstable may establish and implement an early 

retirement incentive program for county employees as otherwise provided in section 66 of said chapter 188 and 

subject to the following provisions: 

(i) The County Administrator shall submit a plan to the public employee administration commission for 

approval within two (2) months after the effective date of this act; 

(ii) Once the plan has been approved, the County Administrator shall submit a plan to the Board of 

County Commissioners for acceptance no later than the next meeting of the Board of County Commissioners at 

which the plan can be practically submitted; 

(iii) Within one month after the plan has been accepted by the Board of County Commissioners, the 

County Administrator shall publish and make the approved plan available to the employees; 

(iv)The County Administrator shall require employees to participate within two (2) months of the plan's 

publication; 

(v) The County Administrator shall determine which employees shall be allowed to participate in the 

program and shall notify those employees within one (1) month of the application deadline; and 

(vi) The County Administrator shall require that participating employees shall retire within two (2) 

months of notification of acceptance. 

Section 2. This act shall take effect upon its passage. 

https://malegislature.govlBifls/190/H4107 2/2 



Amendment #1 to H4107 

Floor Amendment 

Mr. Speliotis of Danvers moves to amend the bill by inserting after section 1 the following section: 

"SECTION lA. The county administrator, with the approval of the commissioners of Barnstable county, may fill 

county department position vacated as a result of participation by an eligible employee in the retirement 

incentive program vacated by such participation; provided, however, that the total annualized cost of regular 

compensation paid out by the county in fiscal year 2019 for all refilled positions shall not exceed 20 per cent of 

the total annualized cost of regular compensation that would have been paid out by the county during fiscal year 

2019 for positions vacated in county pursuant to the retirement incentive program had the positions not been 

vacated; and provided further, that the total annualized cost of regular compensation paid out by the county in 

fiscal year 2019 for all refilled positions shall not exceed 20 per cent of the total annualized cost of regular 

compensation which would have been paid out by the county during fiscal year 2019 for the positions vacated in 

the county pursuant to the retirement incentive program had the positions not been vacated. 

An employee retired under this act shall not be re-employed in county service, whether as a consultant, an 

independent contractor or a person whose regular duties require time devoted to county service, within 30 days 

after the date of retirement." 

https://malegislature.gov/Bills!190/H4107/Amendments/House?pageNumber=!$direction=asc&sortColumn=Title&keyword= 1/1 



20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8b 
 

Authorizing Special Counsel to add additional Counsel in the matter of 
Barnstable County v. 3M Company, et al. 

  



  
{Client Files/312106/0001/BIL/04724287.DOCX;1} 

CONFIDENTIAL ADDENDUM TO ATTORNEY SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN BARNSTABLE COUNTY AND 

SL ENVIRONMENTAL LAW GROUP, PC AND KENNEDY & MADONNA, LLP 

On December 25, 2016, Barnstable County (“Client”) signed a Joint Agreement with SL 
Environmental Law Group PC (“SL”) and Kennedy & Madonna, LLP (“KM”) to represent 
Client in a civil action in Massachusetts Superior Court and/or U.S. District Court, including 
any appeals and interim appeals, against manufacturers of Aqueous Fire Fighting Foam 
(“AFFF”) for costs necessary to protect public health, safety, welfare and the environment, 
property damages and other appropriate relief caused by the defendants (the “Action”). 

Paragraph 9 of the December 25, 2016 Attorney Services Agreement reads as follows: 

9. DIVISION OF ATTORNEY’S FEES. Attorney may divide Attorney’s fees 

received for the legal services provided under this Agreement with another attorney or 

law firm retained as associate counsel. The terms of such division, if any, will be 

disclosed to Client. Attorney and Client agree that such a division may be made only 

with Client’s written consent after a full disclosure to Client in writing that a division of 

fees will be made and of the terms of such division. A decision by Attorney to retain 

associate counsel shall be subject to Client’s approval, which shall not be withheld 

unreasonably. 

Pursuant to paragraph 9, SL and KM hereby notifies Client and requests its consent to 
associate with the following firms on Client’s case. 

 
Douglas and London, P.C. 
59 Maiden Lane, 5th Floor 
New York, NY 10038 
 
Kelley Drye & Warren, LLP 
515 Post Oak Blvd., Suite 900 
Houston, TX 77027 
 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister, LLP 
425 Walnut St., Suite 1800 
Cincinnati, OH 45202 
 
Levin Papantonio Thomas Mitchell Rafferty & Proctor, P.A. 
316 S. Baylen Street 
Pensacola, FL 32502 



 2 
{Client Files/312106/0001/BIL/04724287.DOCX;1} 

If the Client approves this association, the division of fees will be as follows: 

SL Environmental Law Group – 23% 
Douglas & London – 18.5% 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister – 18.5 
Levin Papantonio Thomas Mitchell Rafferty & Proctor – 18.5% 
Kelley Drye & Warren – 13.5% 
Kennedy & Madonna – 8% 

 
All other sections of the December 25, 2016 Attorney Services Agreement remain 

unchanged and in full effect. 
 

Barnstable County (Client) 
 
By: ________________________________ 
      Jack Yunits, Jr., County Administrator 
 

 
 
______________________________ 
Date 

 
By: _________________________________ 
       Kevin Madonna 
       Kennedy & Madonna LLP 

 
_______________________________ 
Date 

 
By: __________________________________ 
       Alexander Leff 
       SL Environmental Law Group PC 

 
________________________________ 
Date 

 
 



20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8c 
 

Authorizing the approval of a reimbursement request from Kristy Senatori, 
Executive Director of the Cape Cod Commission, for the period of November 15, 
2018 through February 27, 2019 

  





















































































20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8d 
 

Authorizing the award of contracts to Nauset Disposal and MA Frazier Disposal 
for the service and maintenance of portable toilets for the Towns of Brewster, 
Eastham and Yarmouth 

  



COUNTY OF BARNSTABLE 
PURCHASING 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
SUPERIOR COURT HOUSE 

P.O. BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 
 
 
        March 15, 2019 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   County Commissioners 
 
FROM:   Elaine Davis, Chief Procurement Officer 
 
RE:  Notice of Bid Award 
Barnstable County issued an Invitation for Bids for the Service and Maintenance of Portable Toilets 
for towns in the County.  Two bids were received.  Please vote to award the bids for the Towns of 
Brewster, Eastham and Yarmouth according to the pricing listed on the attached spreadsheet. 
to the responsive, responsible bidders:  
 

Nauset Disposal  
MA Frazier Disposal 

 
  
The Town of Eastham has not responded.   
 
County Commissioners:  
 
 
_____________________                    _______________________            ____________________ 
Ronald R. Beaty, Jr.    Mary Pat Flynn                                 Ronald Bergstrom 
 
 
_______________________ 
Date 

Elaine Davis 
Chief Procurement Officer 
 

Phone: (508) 375-6637 
Fax: (508) 362-4136 

Email: 
edavis@barnstablecounty.org 



B
re

w
st

er
18

.4
9

18
.4

9
53

,3
50

.0
0

55
.0

0
18

0.
00

18
0.

00
10

.9
6

10
.9

6
56

,9
24

.2
0

49
.5

0
16

2.
00

16
2.

00
H

ar
w

ic
h

7.
54

7.
54

4,
48

8.
00

55
.0

0
18

0.
00

18
0.

00
7.

23
7.

23
4,

30
5.

00
47

.5
0

16
2.

00
16

2.
00

Ea
st

ha
m

19
.3

2
19

.3
2

42
,2

18
.0

0
55

.0
0

18
0.

00
18

0.
00

14
.8

4
14

.8
4

39
,7

76
.4

0
47

.5
0

16
2.

00
16

2.
00

Ya
rm

ou
th

no
 b

id
no

 b
id

no
 b

id
no

 b
id

no
 b

id
no

 b
id

6.
23

6.
23

17
,7

18
.9

6
49

.5
0

16
2.

00
16

2.
00

Po
rt
a‐
Po

tt
ie
s ‐
 4
/1
/2
01

9 
‐ 3

/3
1/
20

20
O
pe

n:
 2
/1
3/
20

19

Ad
di

tio
na

l/ 
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Pu

m
pi

ng

Ad
di

tio
na

l/ 
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Pu

m
pi

ng

AD
A 

U
ni

ts
 

pe
r 

un
it/

pe
r 

da
y

R
eg

ul
ar

 
U

ni
ts

 p
er

 
un

it/
pe

r d
ay

O
ve

ra
ll 

Pr
ic

e 
– 

en
tir

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

pe
rio

d

Sp
ec

ia
l 

Ev
en

t p
er

 
da

y

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

U
ni

ts
 p

er
 

D
ay

Fr
as
er

To
w

n 

AD
A 

U
ni

ts
 p

er
 

un
it/

pe
r 

da
y

N
au

se
t D

is
po

sa
l

R
eg

ul
ar

 
U

ni
ts

 p
er

 
un

it/
pe

r 
da

y

O
ve

ra
ll 

Pr
ic

e 
– 

en
tir

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

pe
rio

d

Sp
ec

ia
l 

Ev
en

t p
er

 
da

y

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

U
ni

ts
 p

er
 

D
ay



20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8e 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with Aggregate Industries for Roadway 
Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 1, 2019 through 
March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one additional year 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

'and 
Aggregate Industries NER 
230 Great Western Road 
South Dennis, MA 02660 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day of 2019 by and between Aggregate 
Industries, NER,(hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Mary Pat Flynn, Ronald Beaty and 
Ronald Bergstrom as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal 
liability. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for ttre consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Roadway Materials 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
items highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor.. .The Vendor hereby agrees to pertorrn the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Towns 
harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, unemployment compensatbn 
benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney 

fees 

in the event the Cantractorfiles such claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The .Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Special Provisions 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 30, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year. 

4. Payment. Bids submitted as highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to#ulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either party 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this. Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective date thereof. 
Such notice -shall be given at least fifteen (i5) calendardays before such effective date. 

8. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract. by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination, In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, forservices performed and-for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 

7. Changes.. The County may,' from #ime to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 



performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
Customer costs, which are mutually- agreed upon by the Town and the Customer, shall be 
incorporated 

in written amendments to this Contract. 

8. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran status. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited 
to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 
1518§(1 }; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. If this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget. Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms.-All-subcontracts shall be in writlng and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

10. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No ofFicer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which affec#s .his personal interest fir the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly. ar indirectly fi na n c i a 1 Ly interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract ar the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The .Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation}, without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or Countythereto; provided, however that claims for money due ar to 
became due the Contractor from the 

Towns 

underthis Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other financial .institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

i3. Recorclkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7} years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 
Aq retention periods start on the first day after final payment. under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit. or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention. period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of ail issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. . If this. contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees,. shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 

14. Findings Confidental. . Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or assembled 
by the Contractor under #his Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confdential shall 



not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County or Towns. 

15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data ar other materials prepared under this 
Contract. 

16. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used far any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. Ouring the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 {b} (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachuset#s General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51% of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business ent'~ty or 
entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51% of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph _shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a party. Ail parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the' other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that -the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and nature of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with ail applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 18 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fnes, 
penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractor's failure 
to comply with the provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section.. If the Contractor receives federal 
funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with alt federal 
requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Profit entities that receive 
federal funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

2i. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract If any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of all obligations under -that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 

and all claims against Barnstable County and release 13amstabte County from any liability arising out 
of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

G1uNERAL 

The Work under this Contract consists of providing various materials as described herein to the Towns of 
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Orleans, 
Provincetovm, Sandwich, Truro, Wellfleet and/or Yarmouth through an Agreement with the County of 
Barnstable. 

All Wark done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the 1988 Massachusetts Highway 
Department {MOOT) Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the Supplemental Specifications, 
the 2445 Standard Special Provisions, the 2410 Cansttvction Standard Details, and the 2009 Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices,'all as amended, and these Special Provisions. 

NO FUEL PRICE ADJUSTMENT WILL BE ALLOWED FOR ANY OF THE CONTRACT BID ITEMS 
CONTAINED HEREIN. As noted on the Bid Form, a liquid asphalt price adjustment will be allowed for 
the Hot Mix Asphalt (Loaded on Town Trucks) ONLY. No other bid items will be allowed price 
adjustments. 

The Special Provisions shall take precedence aver the General Requirements of the Standard Specifications. 

The vendor shall furnish manufactwer's certification that the materials conform to the specifications. All 
material shall be delivered to and offloaded ateach Town's Highway Division yard or to a mutually 
agreeable site, except Hot Mix Asphalt which shall be loaded on Town trucks at the plant. All costs of 
transportation shall be included in the prices bid. lf, at any time, the materials delivered are found to be sub-
standard, the vendor shall be responsible for removing the offending material at their cost, within ten (10) 
working days after receiving notification from Ehe Town. 

All deliveries shall be made during each Town's normal business hours, Monday though Friday (except 
legal holidays), and in the presence of an authorized Town employes yr agent. 

Delivery shall be immediate unless the item is out of stock or not normally stocked, then the vendor shall 
notify the Town and shall make delivery within ten (14) days. 

If at any time the vendor is unable to furnish. materials or services as ordered by a Town: 

* The vendor shall be obligated to obtain delivery from another supplier-and will in turn 
invoice the Town at the price specified in the Contract, or 

* The Tawn may order such materials or services from such places as are available, and 
the vendor shall reimburse the Town for all expenses incurred above the Contract price. 

If services of the vendor are subsequently deemed to be unsatisfactory to any Town and/or are in violation 
of these specifications, aTown shall notify the said vendor in writing. If mutually agreeable arrangements 
cannot be achieved between the Town and the. vendor, the terms of the Contrast for that Town wil! be 
terminated. Notice of termination will be in writing and notification will be sent by registered or certified 
mail. Ternnation will become effecfive three (3) days. after mailing said notification. Termination of a 
Contract by any Town shall-not.invalidate or alter the tenons of a similar Contract with any other Town. 

The vendor receiving an award shall, at no expense to any Town, adhere to Massachusetts General Law 
Chapter i 11F - "Right to Know Law" as it shall apply to the items contained in the award notice. 

St'-1 



MSDS [abets and data are required where applicable. 

ESTIMATED 4UANTITIES BY TOWN 

Each Town has provided the estimated quantities far each bid item that it is presently planning to use 
which can be found in Attachment A. Because of unanticipated funding levels and bid results, these 
estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. It there is no quantity provided for 
an item, then that specific Town does not intend to use that item. 

UNIT_ PRICE WORK 

Initially, the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the 
established unit price for each separately identified .item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of 
each item as indicated in the Agreement. The estimated quantities of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed 
and are solely for the purpose of comparison of $ids and determining an initial Contract Price. 
Determinations of the actual quantities and classification of Unit Price Work performed by CONTRACTOR 
will be made by each Town. 

Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by CONTRACTOR to be adequate to cover 
CONTRACTOR'S overhead and profit for each separately identified item. The prices bid shall, without 
exception, include all royalties and other costs arising from patents, trademazks, and copyrights in anyway 
involved in the materials to ~ supplied. _ 

When the accepted quantity: of Work varies from the estimated quantity, the CONTRACTOR shall accept as 
payment in full, so far as each contract -item is concerned, payment at the anginal Contract unit price for the 
accepted quantity of Work done. No allowance will be made for any increased expenses, lass of expected 
reimbursement or loss of anticipated profits suffered or claimed by the Contractor, resulting either directly 
or indirectly from such increased or decreased quantity. 

Each Town does not guarantee any minimum quantity ofUnit Price Work. The CONTRACTOR may 
contact each Town to obtain information. regarding quantities, used in previous years, if he so chooses, 
However, each Town will not guarantee that an equal or greater quantity of Unit Price Work will be 
requested. Each Town reserves the right to purchase quantities of Contract materials from other sources for 
emergency or other reasons. 

The vendor shall submit separate invoices accompanied by signed delivery slips to each using division/ 
department of each Town. 

I! shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. to inform each Town when the sum of all orders for 

units of Work is within 90% of the total Contract price for. that Town. _The CONTRACTOR'S total billing 

can not exceed the total Contract price without prior written approval by each Town. 

TAXES 

State taxes will be excluded from aiI General and Sub-bids. The Towns shall provide their exemption 
certificate number to the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall pay all taxes required to be paid by 
CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are 
applicable during the performance of the Work. 

SP-2 



WEIGHING

All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery and the 
weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may provide use of its 
scale and require gross weights and vehicle tare weights verified at lime of delivery. 

M)<SCELLANEOUS

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding 
on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically, but 
without limitation, moneys that 

may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except ro the extent that the effect of this restriction maybe Iimited by law), and unless specifically 
stated to the contrary in any written consent 

to 

an 

assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

The County and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

This CONFRACT shall be deemed to include all terms and requirements imposed by laws related to the 
performance of the Work on the Projector Services, 

This is not an exclusive contract to provide services or materials to the County and Towns. The County and 
Towns reserve the right to contract for similar services or materials. 

INTEREST

Al[ monies not paid when due hereunder shall bear interest at the maximum rate allowed by law at the place 
of the Project. 

s 



ITEM 200 HOT j,VIIX ASPHALT tZQADED ON TOWN TRUCKSI 

Bituminous Concrete (Hot Mix Asphalt) shall be manufactured in conformance with the material, 
composition, mixing, testing and plant requirements of Standard Specification Section M3. Top course mix, 
binder course mix and dense mix shall be furnished, as required, and Ioaded on Town trucks. 

ITEM 201 SAND BORROW 
ITEM 202 LOAM BORROW 

Sand and Loam Barrow materials shall canfotm to the following Standard Specification subsections: 

Sand Borrow -for Winter Maintenance - M 1.04.0 Type a (Washed) 
Loam Borrow - M 1.05.0 

Sand shall be washed and screened through a one quarter inch (114") screen. The sand must be coarse and 
free from clay, silty loam-and other undesirable materials. Deliveries of sand shall be made during the 
vendor's normal business hours, Monday through Friday. A Town may require, at its discretion, that 
emergency deliveries must be made during other periods to include Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays and non-
business hours Monday through Friday at no extra cost to the Town. The vendor shall complete normal and 
emergency deliveries within a 12 hour period after receiving a request for delivery (maximum delivery 
1,000 tons per I2 hours). 

Loam borrow shall be screened to removed all stones and other material larger than 1 inch. 

ITEM 243 1-112" CRUSHED STONE !DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM 204 314" CRUSI~IED STONE (DOUBLE WASHED) 
jTEM 20S 3JS" PEASTONE {DOUBLE WISHED) 
ITEM 206 3/4" DENSE GRADES CRUS)FIED STONE 

Aggregate materials shall conform to the following Standard Specification subsections: 

Crushed Stone - M 2.41.1 through 2.01.6 (double washed} 
Dense Graded Crushed Stone - M 2.01.? (3!4") 

A requirement far all grades of crushed -stone (except dense graded) shall be that not more than 4.3% of 
unsatisfactory material shall pass a No.4 sieve. 

ITEM 207 RECYCLED ASPHALT 

The recycled asphalt material shall. meet the following gradation requirements: 

Sieve 
Designation 
3" 

1-1i2" 
3/4" 
#4 
#50 
#240 

Percentage By Weight 
Passing Through 

100 
70 • ] 00 
50 - 85 
30 - 60 

8 - 24 
0- 10 

SP-A 



The stone and sand material shall consist of inert material that is hard, angular, and durable, and free from 
cement concrete, brick, reinforcing stcel, glass, wood, building rubble, loam and clay and other deleterious 
materials. Native mend stone and materials that break up when alternately frozen and thawed or wetted and 
dried shall not be used. The material shall be "T-base" as manufactured by Aggregate Industries, Inc. or 
approved equivalent. 

Each stockpile shall be festal (at no additional coscto thc Town} for sieve analysis and California Bearing 
Ratio (CBR} by an independent, qualified Massachusetts laboratory. The certified results shall be equal to 
or 

greater than that of gravel borrow (M1.03.0 type b), and the certifications shall be supplied to each Town. 
The processed material shall be stockpiled in such a manner as to minimize segregation of particle sizes. 
All recycled pavement material shall come from approved stockpiles. 

The material shall be subject to reviaw and. approval by a Town prior to delivery. 

ITEM Z08 4'x4' PRECAST LEACH GALLEY 
STEM 209 1.000 GALLON PRECAST CA~'GH BASIN 
ITEM 210 1,000 GALLON PRECAST LEACH PIT 
ITEIVI 211 4' DIAMETER PRECAST CATCH BASIN Wl4FFSET TOP 

All precast structures shall be capable of withstanding H-20. loading with a minimum concrete strength of 
4,000 psi (a~ 28 days. Steel reinforcement shall be Grade 60 meeting ASTM-A-6I S requirements. 

The 1,000 Gallon Precast Solid Catch Basin shall have a solid bottom or include a 6' diameter Basin Pad 
meeting the same rquirements as the structures. The cast of the Base Pad shall be included with the cost of 
the structure. 

The 4' Diameter Precast Catch Basin wlOffset Top shall have separate top with an offset opening. The 
structure shall have a 4 foot deep sump below the outlet pipe. 

The Town shall specify the.hole diameter and hole locations) at the time of order. 

The manufacturer shall deliver thc structure to thc Town DPW or at the installation location as specified by 
the Town. 

Payment for the precast drainage structures shall be by the Contract Unit Price per Each delivered. 

sts-s 



ATTACHMENT A 
BID FORM AND E~SFIMATGD QUANTITIES BY TOWN 

BID FORM 

Each Town has provided estimated quantities for each bid item that it presently intends to order. Theca 
estimated quantities are forbid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. The estimated amounts are also a 
total aggregate which the town intends to use during the contract period and the bidder should familiarize 
themselves with the minimum jab quandNes defined in the individual specifications for each item. 

BID YDENTIFICATION: ROAD CONSTRUCTYON MATERIALS 
{UNIT PRICE WORI!Q 

THI5 BID iS 9U8MIT'FED TO; 
(Name and Address Oflica of the County CamnusaleFue:rs 
of Owner) Superior Caart Hewse 

P.O. BeFx 4Z7 
Barnstable, Massaehusetts 02b30 

1. The undersignexl BIDDER proposes and agrees, if the Bid is accepted to entex into an Agreement with 
the County, to complete alt' Work as specified ar indicated in the Contract Documents for the Contract 
Unit Prices during the contract period of Anri11, 2019 to March 31.202B, wit4 an option tez renew 
far one: atlditiaaat veer and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

2. HIDDI'R accepts alt of the terms and conditions of the Ia~tructions to Bidders. This Bid wit! remain 
opal For sixty (60) days after the day of Bid apening. BIDDER will sign the Agreement and submit 
other documents (e.g. Bonds, Insurance Bindexs) required by the Contract Documents within five (5} 
working days after the: date of the: County's Notice of Award. 

3. In submitting this Bid, BIDDER represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement, that: 

3.1 BIDDER has examined .copies of all the Contract Documrnis and of 
the following addenda: 

Date:  Number 
Date Number 
Date Number 

{receipt of all of whkh is hereby acknowledged) and also copies of the Notice to 
Bidders and the Instructionsto Biddexs. 

3.2 BIDDER bas entamined the legal requirements {federal, state and local laws, by-laws, rules and 
regulations) and the conditions affecting cost, progress of performance of the: Work and has 
made such independent irrvesdgations as BIDDER deems nexessary. 

3.3 This Bid is genuine and not made in the intea7est of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm 
or corporadon~ and is not submitteuf in conformity wttb any agreement or nde~"of eny group, 
assoctadon, arganizadon or corporation; BIDDER has not directly or indirectly induced or 
solicited any other Bid_ der to submit a false: or sham BId; BIDDER has not solicited or induced 
any person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding; and BIDDER has not sought by 
collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over'any other Bidder or ova the County. 

BF I 



4. BIDDER will complete alt the Work assigned for the unit prices) listed in the Hid Form. 

5. The following docwnents are attached to snd made a condition of this Bid: 

S.1 A tabulation of Subcontractors and other pawns or organizations reguir~ to be identified in 
this Bid. 

ti. Communications eonce

n

rning tljis Hid be addressed ter: 

Company Name:  A ~~~c~+'~~$+ _ '~J /~~i$?~ I ~ "' p\] ~ 1~ 

Address  n~30 ro~it~T' G1/~ ) ~~ cj ~IltJt ~ ~Yl ~- OZ-.~60

Telephone No.:  ~ ~ ~~~-^ ~~(a~ 

Fax No.: 1~o n~+-~.. 

E-mail Address:  !'.7vtr'T~pI~t12C5, ~ ~1'R'gR~'~-'U.S , ~~'1 

Bidder's Contact Person:  VV • ̀ ~~Q,,`~( t~JO~s 

7. Bid cornpartwa will be based on each Item unit price provided for each Town. Bidders may bid on 
any or all items for any or all Towns listed. Bid sekcdon will be by each item aY Town and will be 
based on the lowest, qualified. rtepons~ble, and responsive bid far tech item for each Town. 

8. The undersigned certifies uadcc peaeJties of perjury that this Bid is in all nrspccts boaa fide, fair and 
made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used In this paragraph, the word "person" 
shall mean any natural parson, joint venture, partnership crnporation or other business or legal entity. 

SUBMITTED on  ~utA(~ ~~ 

An Individual 

By {St:AL) 
(Individual's Name and Signature) 

doing business as 

Business address: 

Phone No.: 

SF•2 



A ParinersEtia 

By (SEAL) 
(Firm Name) 

(General Partner Name aad Signature) 

Business address: 

Phone No.•  _... 

A Coraoratioq 

(corporation Name} 

By, 
{Name ot~ferson authorized to sign and Signature) 

(Corporate Seal; 

Arrest 
(Secretary) 

Business address: 03 0 6~ 1~~T~2~ ~~ 

Phony No.: so ~ ~~ -Sgc~~ 



9 
AGGREGATE 

INDUSTRIES 

Secretary's Certificate 

AGGREGATE INDUSTRIES —NORTHEAST REGiON~iNC. 

The undersigned, Chadwick M. Groff, Clerk of Aggregsie industries -- Northeast Region, Inc,, a 
Massachusetts corporation (the" Corporation"), hereby certifies that pursuant to an Action+ ay 
Unanimous Written Consent of the Board of Directors dated March 1, 2008 it was: 

RESOLVED: That Roberto Huet, Chad~vlck M. Groff, Barry Powers+ Eddy Perslco and Robert P. 
Andersson, are each individually. and acting alone, authorized, directed and empowered 
as agents of the' Corporation, to sign under the Corporation`s corporate seal, obligations 
of the Corporation in the name of and on b8half of the Corporation; and the execution of 
any such contract, bond or obligation by any agent named above shall be valid and 
binding upon the Corporation far ail purposes, and that this resolution shall remain in futl 
farce and effect unless and until the same has been altered, amended or revoked by a 
subsequent vats of the Corporation's Directors and a Certificate of such lacer vote is 
attested to by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Corporation. 

l do further certify that the above Vote has not been altered, amended or rescinded and remains 
in full farce and affect. 

l do further certify the# the Corporation is duty organized and the foregoing Vote is in 
accordance with the Articles of Organfzatlan and By-Laws of the Corporation. 

Dated as of this ~, day of ~~ 2006 

AGGREGATE lNDUSTRlES-

Northeast iteglan. Jac. 

130 Gaat weslem Road 
sane o.~,~, Massaarosags o16b0 

Tetapttona 506.398.8865 
FacsitNia 506.394.5+32 



~ doiat Venture 

sy 
{Name and Signaturc} 

(Address} 

ey  
{Name and Signahue} 

{Addresr) 

(Each joint venture must sign. Tfie meaner of signing for each individual, partnership and corporation that 
is pasty to the joint venture should 6e in the manna indicated above} 



PLEASE USE THiS AS THS CQVER"SHEET FOR`YOUE~ BID 

CERTIl=KATE of NON•COLLUSIQN ANC TAX COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter t32C, Section 48A, i certify under tim penalties of perjury that I, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with ati laws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts relating to faxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and 

remitting child support. 

1 certify under the penaltiss of perjury that this bidlproposal has been made and submitted in gaol 

faith and without coltuslon ar fraud with any other person. As us~l in this certificate, the word 

"person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporatbn, union, committee, 

dub or oti'aer legal organization, entity or group of individuals. 

Company: 

Address: 

A~~R~a~-~'~s-~a,~s n1.~.Q. 
a3o 64~r wE~'R~►zN t2~ 

~au.7u A.m~N~s, mA~ oz~v 

Signature of Individual Signing 

Bid, or Corporate Officer. 

Telephone Number:  

social Security Number 

`~~~-
S?J~ 39'8-~ $65~ 

Or Federal Iderrttficatlon Number.  v L~ "" ~ ~ ~ 1 3 

i ~ a3 ~ ~~ oa>~: 
an p~rsoa or ooeparaflonwMah hllr r. . lhts aawmsat 

vr111 a canildand s aarnspons[vs biddy 

cad wNl br t~Hcbd pu~tuont to ~!. r ~0, 79M. 

$F-S 



BID FORM 
MATERIALS 

(UNIT PRICE WORD 

State the Unit Bid Price (written in words and is numerals) far each Towa listed {ace Attachment A for 
Estimated QuaaHtks}. $idlers may wish to contact each Town to obtain actual quantifies purchased 
daring prior years. Bidders may bid 

on arty or all items for any or all Towns. Bid selection will be by each 
item and will be based on the lowest, gvalifted, responsible, and responsive bid far each item for each 
Town. 

Price Adigstmynta: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) method for calculating 
price adjustments due to cast fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland ceracat, diesel fuel, gasoline, and 
structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Liquid Asphalt ad juatmeat a6alt apply to Hat Mix Asphalt 
(Loaded as Town Trirehs) an orders grater than 100 tons w>tere the adjustment resnlb is a change 
in the Unit Price of 5% or more. No other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt price adjuattnent shah be based on the difference belweea the price at the time of the bid 
(base bid price} and the price on the date of paving. The Liquid Asphalt base bid price aball be the price 
pasted as the MassDOT Website far the month of December, 2018. 

Tied Bids: N the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to detemune the awarded bidder. 

8t=6 



ArracHMauTA 
ROADWAY MATERIALS 8!0 

B!D FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 20D 
Estimated 

quantity 

Tawn 

aarnstabk 750 

Bourne 40D 

Brewster S00 

Chatham 100 

Dente 500 

Harwkh 100 

Oriaans 200 

Sandwkh 700 

Yarmouth 500 

Item 201 
Estimated 

Quantity 

town 

9amstabie 500 

Brewster 2,000 

Chatham 1,000 

Dennis zoo 

Item ?A2 
Estimated 

Quatrtriy.°' 

town 

t3arastable 5W 

Brewster 100 

C1►atham 200 

Dennis 200 

Sandwich 200 

Hot Mix Asphalt Goaded on Town Trucks) 

Sand Borrow 

Unit BJd Prke !n Words 

~i 
loam Borrow 

Un1C81d Prke la Words 

N~ 

Fer TON 

!n Numerals 

~q e o0 
~79. ~a 
-?q. 
79, oa 
'~ . ~ D 

-~9* d a 
~. 0 ~ 

ov

Per TON 

!n Numemh 

Per TON 

!n Nwnerals 

BF 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS BID 

BID FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTVTIES 

Item 2D3 

Town 

Harnstabie 

Estimated 

quantity 

xao 

Bourne 300 

Brewster 500 

Chatham 150 

Dennts 50D 

Sandwich Z00 

Yarmouth 

Item 204 

Town 

Barnstable 

500 

Estimated 

Quantity 

50 

Bourne 28D 

Brewster 250 

Chatham 50 

Dennis 200 

Sandwich 20D 

Yarmouth 

Item 205 

Town 

SD 

Estimated 

Quantity 

Barnstable 50 

Brewster 250 

Chatham 100 

DennEs 200 

Sandwich 100 

Yarnnouth 5D 

1-1/2" Gushed Stone (Double Washed) 

Unit 9fd Prate !n Words 

N~ 

3/4" Crushed Stone (Double Washed) 

Unit Btd Prate to Wards 

i~~ 

3/8" Peastone (Doubts Washed] 

Unit Bid Ante In words 

P~ 

Per TON 

to Numerois 

Per TON 

In Numerals 

Per TON 

!n Numerals 

8F-~ 



ATTACHMENT A 

ROADWAY MATERIALS 8tD 
B10 FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 206 

Town 

Barnstable 

Bourne 

Brewster 

Chatham 

Dennis 

Orleans 

Sandwich 

Yarmouth 

Item 207 

Tawn 

Brewster 

Estimated 

Quantity 

500 

500 

S00 

25 

500 

2,aao 

zoo 

500 

Estimated 
quantity 

I00 

Chatham 200 

Dennis 600 

, ' ~ ~ ~~ Harwich 400 r ~:~ ~..i1 ~! ~.. ' ~:~. 
Sandwtth 200 ,j~ ~ ~~J~—~~,,,,~ 

3/4" Dense Graded Crushed Stone 

tJnit Sid Price !rr Wards 

~ ~'' 

Reryded Asphalt 

tlnit 81d Price !n Wards 

~ .~ . . /i / ~.♦ L~...., 
I !x/ 

Per TON 

!» Numerals 

Per TON 

!n Numerols 

~' c.w~-~~ I~`o O o 
~+ 

~ lr•~.~s i~l ~' 

Item 208 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Town 

Barnstable 20 

Brewster 50 

Chatham Z 

Dennis 20 

Sandwich 8 

Yanrncvth 10 

4'x4' Precast teach Galley 

tlaJ! 8fd PrfCe !n Words 

~~ S~ 
/ G/ 'r  !~Q 

Per EA 

to Numerals 

Bf• ̀ 1 



arracHNtEwT a 
ItoAowav rirs~►r~tats BiD 

BIO FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 209 
Estimated 
Civantity 

1000 Gat[an Precast Catch Basta Per EA 

Town Unit 81d Puce 111 Words M Numerals 

earnsbble 10 

Hrewster 25 

Chatham 5 

Dent+ls 3 

Sandwich 

item 210 
Estimated 
Quantity 

t00Q Gatlan Precast teach Pit Per EA 

Town 11nliBld PNce !n Wards M Numerols 

Bamsbble 18 

Brewster 2S 

Chatham 8 

Dennis 1D 

Sandwkh 

Item 213 

town 

9arnstabk 

6 

Estimated 
Quantity 

10 

Brewster 15 

Chatham Z 

Oennis S 

Sandwich Z 

Yarmouth S 

Utl 

4' Diameter Precast Catch Basin w/Offset Tflp 

Unli eld a'~r 1n Words 

~i~ 

Per EA 

!n Numerals 

8~. ~ 



• 

Document A310~' -- 2010 
Bjd Bond 

CONiRA~CTOR: 
(Nance legalstatusa+rd address} 

WDUSTFgE8 -NORTHEAST 

OWNER: 
{Name, legs! statrts and addnssJ 
sARN3TA6t.E COUNTY 

t'O sou <27, Bamatable, AAI► 02630 

BOND AMOUNT: Rve percent at amours bid. 
i54i al AlpOunt 81d) 

SURETY: 
(Name, legal status and prirrclpa! plate 
ofbvslness~ 
w ~~ ~c~w~rnr 

. ti0e06 

PROJECT: 
(Name, location or address and ProJed mrmber, lfany) 
RwdwaY t~latertals Banutabla County 

Ttda doaanent has tmport~,t taper 
oonaaquencea conwkatlon wRh 
an atbnney b encarreped edih 
rospsd to Id camplellon or 
rnodNlcstion. 

Any elnpuhr retuenoe to 
Conbedor, Surety. Owner or 
other prrty aNN ba oomklered 
pMuaIMAlele eppacable. 

Project Number, if arty: 

The Contractor and Steaty ale boned to tits Owner In the amount set forth above, for the payment of which the 
Contractor trod Surety bind themselves, their heirs, exewtas,administrators. asoeessors and assigns, jointly and 
saveraUy, at; provided herein. The oonditioas of this Bowl era each that if the Owner stxxpts the bid of ibe Contractor 
within the time specified in the bid dot:ttntents, orwiWin such time periodas may be agreed ~ by the Owrtac and 
Contractor, and the Contractor either (I) enters ido a txtrttract with the Otvaar in acooidance wiW tits terms of such 
bid, sad gives such bond or bonds as rosy be apeci5ed ie the bidding or Contract Doatmeats. wiW a sorely admitted 
in the jurisdiction of the projectartd otberwisc axapmbla to the Owner, for the faithfW perfortoeaoc of such Corttr~act 
and for the prompt payracnt of Laborand material Brrrdshod is the prosecution thareoF or (2) pays la the Owntr the 
di8'ateaco, not to elcoxd the amount of tWs Bond„ between the ~trtotttttspccified in said bid and such largetantonnt 
for which the Owner may In good faith eorttraet with amehar~pany m parlous d+a work oovcred by said bid, thm this 
obtigetian ahaU be tttdi and void, oilte:wise to n.tnaiu in fWl force and eB'ou. The Sauey hereby waives any notice of 
an agnement between the Owner and Contracmr ro extend the tIrua ist which the Owner may tiecept the bid. Waive of 
notice by the Stnety shat! sot apply to any extension exaedieg sbcty (60) days in the aggrogata beyor~ the drat: for 
aceeptartce of bids specified lathe bid documattts, and We Owner end Coauador ahaU obtain rite Suuety's consent for 
an extension bayoad sixf<y (60) days. 

if this Bond is lssttcd in conrttxtian with a w6coturactor's bId to a Contractor, the term Contractor is this Bond shall 
ba deemed to be Sabconitactor and tLe term Owttarsbsll ba deeaaad to be Contracto( 

Wbcrt this Goad has beta fhrrtished to comply with a statutory orather iapl ragttirerncnt is the hrwtiott of the Project, 
airy provision in this Bond confiidmg with said statutory or lager naptirement shell be dernted deleted herefrom and 
provistorts oonforndttg Io sucb statnbry ar orbs legal regtdncmatt shall be deemed iricotpatated herein Wbcn so 
furnished. the intent is that this Bond shelf be conatrucd as a statutory ~ ~,. . ~ ~ not as a comtrwn lary Goad. 

Signal and sealed this z3rd day of Jsnwry, 20 

rll~ 

IE8 - • " ' T RtsOION. tNC. ~~~ 

t.up. Tyler, Attarnay ir! Fact 

ATA DoeumNa A310a• — 2ata Copyrlpht Q 10x1,1170 eud 2010 br?M MnlNule d Amhite~ Ace tlafib resd+eed 



'~I~i' 
Western Sur+~.y Company 

POWL►R OF A1TOR~Y APPO~tTIIYG >rIDIV>mUAL AZTOANEY~FACI' 

Knave All 1Nsa 8p 7'besa Praesb.'lioi W8S1'SRN StJItBiY OOMPAIVY, a South Daloret oetpoatloai, b a duly orV~ ~ esirda~ 

bavtrtj Its pdtotpai o~ae to the City of Sbu:lraW. and SWa of Sorrb Daitala, and that h dow by rbmr of tbt dSeraae and Baal hatatn atltral hereby 

aubr, eoa~nta sad sPPotot 

Lope Tyler, Lia>i A Ward, Wendy W Stnelc+ay, Mtclsael J Harrod, Anaap C6awb Adlskhry 
N4nry Thoaraee, Donal► L WiU1Ame, McUsut L Fortler, Vsnesre Domiagna, IndivldatlR}► 

of tiangorti ?X ha utse and farrhd Atlonsq+ta}imFaot welt iWl Petra and aadio~iyr hasty aoafensd to sisu, awl aed asaeoia for and oa Id khrlf boodti 

ardeaattnp prrd odeaobuptorytadnaaartr of ebdlusaans 

- Ia Unlltnited Ataouata -

aad bbbd k dtenby a, Sdh► aad b theaaoa sstsst tv ihaeh htrbttmaala wsa aiSaed by s duly audrotlead otifeer oitM earpw.tloa asd all ~a sao of acid 

ma y. P b ~ X14' hereby daa. aro haehy aul6d aadooailnsai. 

Thla Pawar of Attontay b aoda acrd aauted Pty  m aad 6t' arrtirnhy of tba Sy-I,aw pdwd o~ tlu t~e~a kem~ dolt' adoped. as iadieatad. by 

thaatrerdrtldara oftha cotpetallcs. 

la Wbawt~ WFSTEIW 9URt3iY COMPANY has eaaad thw Presr+rta to bs aisaed by hs Vice Ptetideat sad W eotpoata wl b ba 

Yado a!lbtad oslhia 21st dttyoffa6r.30t& 

statearserrlr Dalota 

Co*dY of Mhta~rhr }• 

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY 

{_.,.T `-
z atan.t, vb. PrwWent 

Os this 2lst day of 7oly. 20lb, before a►a ponauliy ems PsLt T. Bt~t, b eta huo+aa„ whs, ~ by are duty awony did depose snd ay: that he 

iwWe ie the City of stamt PaRa, Stab ofSoah a~ that hs Y the Yks Piddanta[ W!!ST$tlN SIJRSTY tA1NPANY deaedbed is asd wYk1r asesuted 

the stow Imteatsmt; that ha kaotra wa arl of acid ratpoodtsp; tbat 1lra Berl n111aad b 16a said laeteaaont b aneh eorPonta ~ tbat k was sa a!lirad 

Pataneat b snthetity jives by the Bond of Ditaetora of aid mrPosdiaa cod tbat to aiSnad b!a ttma tbarab pmanuft b dba authority, sad sdraowhxise 

fates b 6sthe a~taad dad ofaideorpotatlae. 

My taowmedaa axpitaa 

Juta27.Z021 

CER71PlCA'IE 

-'~/~~ 

Y // !. Mohr, Koury Public 

1.4 Neboq AattWsat Seotstrty of W LtST6RN SUItAlY OOMPANY do hereby ems' tlnrt the Powa of Attoroay bnaiaabava :et fatlh h tutu Ia 

feteq and thrthtr earthy tlol tba Hy-Law of the eorpwatioa priutci oa dta tttrese baeof b atlq fa lbtee. Is toftirarmy whereof I low haatata tarbfetibai 

my trtrnr trnd a~sed the ea! of the tatd eotpoeNkn thb  23rd  day of  Jtemtstt► ~ 2019 . 

t?onallZW7.7dt1 

\\ 

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY 

L Nslpar, AniWntSt:eteary 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the: year Two Thousand-and Nineteen 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

konald Beaty 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Date 

Date 









20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8f 
 

Authorizing the execution of a contract with Cape Cod Aggregates, Corp. for 
Roadway Materials for Towns in Barnstable County for the period of April 1, 2019 
through March 31, 2020, with the option to renew for one additional year 

  



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
Cape Cod Aggregates 
1550 Phinney s Lane, PO Box 517 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day of 2019 by and between Cape Cod 
Aggregates {hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and Mary Pat Flynn, Ronald Beaty and Ronald 
Bergstrom as they are the Commissioners of Barnstable County, but without any personal liability. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree as 
follows: 

WHEREAS: The County Commissioners issued an Invitation for Bids for Roadway Materials 

WHEREAS: The bids were bid in compliance with MA General Law Chapter 30, 39M. 

WHEREAS: The contractor is the responsive, responsible bidder offering the lowest price for the 
items highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1. Employment of Contractor. The Vendor hereby agrees to pertorm the services hereinafter 
set forth in the Scope of Services. Contractor hereby agrees to hold the County and Towns 
harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, unemployment compensation 
benefits, re#irement benefits, or any other benefit normally attributable to the status of "employee" 
and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for ail damages incurred by the County or Town, including 
costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney fees in the event the Contractorfilessueh claim. 

2. Scope of Services. The Vendor shall provide the services provided in the Scope of Services 
hereby attached as Attachment A. 

3. Time of Performance. April 1, 2019 through March 30, 2020, with the option to renew for one 
additional year. 

4. Payment. Bids submitted as highlighted on the attached spreadsheet 

5. Termination or Suspension of Contract far Cause. If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, either party 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving written notice to 
the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the effective da#e thereof. 
Such notice shall be given at least fifteen (15) calendar days before such effective date. 

6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County or Towns shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such termination. In the event of such termination or 
suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation 
for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for reimbursable expenses 
necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to and including the date of 
termination or suspension. 

7. Changes. The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to be 
performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of the 
f`r ie~nmer r•n~4c uehinh oro mr,tr rally onranei r innn hu 4hn Tnu~n e~rfr~l fhn P`r ieMmnr mh~ll ho 



incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 

i3. Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action. The Customer shall take affirmative 
action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without regard to age, race, 
color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, or Vietnam Era 
Veteran status. The Customer agrees to comply with all applicable Federal and State 
statutes, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment including but not limited 
to: Titte VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Massachusetts General taws Chapter 
1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and 
executive orders including Executive Order 246. 

9. Subcontracting. None of the services to be provided to the Towns pursuant to this Contract 
shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in 

part to any o#her organization, association, 
individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior written approval of the 
Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the Customer from any obligation 
or liability under this Contract except as specifically set forth in the instrument of approval. Ef this 
Contract is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with 
the provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect 
to taking affirmative steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain 
provisions which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shag have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 

14. Interest of Members of Towns and Others. No officer, member or employee of the County, 
and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is situated or 
being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the review or approval of the 
undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 
Contract which af#ects his personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or 
association in which he is directly ar indirectly f i n a n c i a I I y interested or has any personal or 
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 

11. Interest of Contractor. The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 
shall not acquire any interest directly yr indirectly which would conflict in any manner or degree 
with the performance of its services hereunder. 

12. Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written 
consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money due or to 
become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust 
company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 

13. Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records. The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to the extent 
and in such detail as shall property substantiate claims for payment under the Contract. All such 
records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer period as is specified herein. 
All retention periods start on the first day after final payment under this Contract. If any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the records is commenced prior to the expiration 
of the applicable retention period, all records shall be retained until completion of the action and 
resolution of all issues resulting therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, 
whichever is later. If this contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the 
state or federal grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or 
designees, shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access shall 
include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 

14. Findings Confidential. Any reports, information, data, etc., given to yr prepared or assembled 
by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as confidential shall 
not be made available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without the prior 
written approval of the County yr Towns. 



15. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material. No material produced in whole or in part 
under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other country. The 
Caunty and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials prepared under this 
Contract. 

16. Political Activity Prohibited. None of the services to be provided by the Contractor shall be 
used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public 
office. 

17. Anti-Boycott Warranty. During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor any 
"affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an international 
boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3} and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1854, as 
amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
Sec#ions 2 and 3 of Chapter 151 E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used herein, an "affiliated 
company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51% of the ownership interested is 
directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or 
entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51% of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

18. Choice of Law. This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to bring any 
federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County or Towns are a 
party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. This 
paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have to intervene in any action, 
wherever pending, in which the other is a party. All parties to this contract and covenant agree that 
any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts in Barnstable County. 

19. Farce Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in breach 
of this Contract far failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes factually 
beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include, but are not 
limited to: acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, strikes, or unusually 
severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to the extent of delays excused 
by this section, provided that the party whose performance is affected notifies the other promptly of 
the existence and na#ure of such delay. 

20. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any state or federal 
governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in this Contract subject to 
section 1l3 above. Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, 
penalties and damages that may arise out of or are imposed because of the Contractors failure 
to comply with khe provisions of this section and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against 
any liability incurred as a result of a violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal 
funds pursuant to this Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal 
requirements including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Praft entities that receive 
federal funds from the Caunty or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 

21. Headings, Interpretation and Severability. The headings used herein are for reference and 
convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the Contract. If any provision 
of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both parties shall be 
relieved of all obligations under that provision. The remainder of the Contract shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

22. Waiver of Liability. The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to waive any 
and aq claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any liability arising out 
of the Scope of Services described in the attached "Exhibit A". 



IN Wli'NESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
day of in the year two thousand and Nineteen 

FOR THE COUNTY: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Beaty 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Date 

FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 

~~ ~ ~ ~~ y ~/'~~S~ ~~t~ 

2 
Oate 



SPECIAL, PROVISIONS 

GENERAL 

The Work under this Contract consists of providing various materials as described herein to the Towns of 
Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Orleans, 
Provincetown, Sandwich, Truro, Wellfleet and/or Yarmouth through an Agreement with the County of 
Barnstable. 

All Work done under this Contract shall be in conformance with the l 9$8 Massachusetts Highway 
Department (MOOT') Standard Specifications for Highways and Bridges, the Supplemental Specifications, 
the 2045 Standard Special Provisions, the 2010 Construction Standard Details, and the 2409 Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices, all as amended, and these Special Provisions. 

NO FUEL PRICE ADJUSTMENT WILL BE ALLOWED FOR ANY OF THE CONTRACT BID ITEMS 
CONTAINED HEREIN. As noted on the Bid Farm, a liquid asphalt price adjustment will be allowed for 
the Hot Mix Asphalt (Loaded on Town Trucks) ONLY. No other bid items wiI! be allowed price 
adjustments. 

The Special Provisions shall take precedence over the General Requirements ofthe Standard Specifications. 

The vendor shall furnish manufaetucer's certifcation that the materials conform to the specifications. All 
material shall be delivered to and off loaded at each Town's Highway Division yard or to a mutually 
agreeable site, except Hot Mix Asphalt which shall be loaded on Town trucks at the plant. All costs of 
transportation shall be included in the prices bid. If, at any time, the materials delivered are found to be sub-
standard, the vendor shall be responsible for removing the offending malarial at their cost, within ten (10} 
working days after receiving notification from the Town. 

All deliveries shall be made during each Town's normal business hours, Monday through Friday (except 
legal holidays}, and in the presence of an authorized Town employee ar agent. 

Delivery shalt be immediate unless the item is out ofstack or not normally stocked, then the vendor shall 
notify the Town and shall make delivery within ten {10} days. 

If at any time the vendor is unable to furnish materials or services as ordered by a Town: 

* The vendor shalt be obligated to obtain delivery from another supplier and will in turn 
invoice the Town at the price specified in the Contract, or 

* The Town may order such materials or services from such places as are available, and 
the vendor shall reimburse the Tawn for all expenses incurred above the Contract price. 

If services of the vendor are subsequently deemed to be unsatisfactory to any Town and/or are in violation 
of these specif cations, a Town shall notify the said vendor in writing. If mutually agreeable arrangements 

cannot be achieved between the Town and the vendor, the terms of the Contract for that Town will be 
terminated. Notice of termination will be in writing and notification will be sent by registered or certif ed 

mail. Termination will become effective three (3}days after mailing said notification. Termination of a 
Contract by any Town shall not invalidate or sitar the terms of a similar Contract with any other Town. 

The vendor receiving an award shall, at no expense to any Town, adhere to Massachusetts General Law 

Chapter i 11F - "Right to Know Law" as it shall apply to the items contained in the award notice. 

SP-I 



MSDS labels and data are required where applicable. 

ESTIMATED QUANTITIES BY TOWN 

Each Town has provided the estimated quantities for each bid item that it is presently planning to use 
which can be found in Attachment A. Because of unanticipated funding levels and bid results, these 
estimated quantities are for bid purposes only and can not be guaranteed. It there is no quantity provided for 
an item, then that specific Town does not intend to use that item. 

UNIT PRICE WORK 

Initially, the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the 
established unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of 
each item as indicated in the Agreement. The estimated quantities of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed 
and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. 
Determinations of the actual quantities and classification of Unit Price Work performed by CONTRACTOR 
will be made by each Town. 

Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by CONTRACTOR to be adequate to cover 
CONTRACTOR'S overhead and profit for each separately identified item. The prices bid shall, without 
exception, include all royalties and other costs arising from patents, trademarks, and copyrights in any way 
involved in the materials to be supplied. 

When the accepted quantity of Work varies from the estimated quantity, the CONTRACTOR shall accept as 
payment in full, so far as each contract item is concerned, payment at the original Contract unit price for the 
accepted quantity of Work done. No allowance will be made for any increased expenses, loss ofexpected 
reimbursement or loss of anticipated profits suffered or claimed by the Contractor, resulting either directly 
or indirectly from such increased or decreased quantity. 

Each Town does not guarantee any minimum quantity of Unit Price Work. The CONTRACTOR may 
contact each Town to obtain information regarding quantities used in previous years, if he so chooses. 
However, each Town will not guarantee that an equal or greater quantity of Unit Price Work will be 
requested. Each Town reserves the right to purchase quantities of Contract materials from other sources for 
emergency or other reasons. 

The vendor shall submit separate invoices accompanied by signed delivery slips to each using division/ 
department of each Town. 

It snail be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to inform each Town when the sum of all orders for 
units of Work is within 90% of the total Contract price for that Town. The CONTRACTOR'S tote! billing 
can not exceed the total Contract price without prior written approval by each Town. 

TAXES 

State taxes will be excluded from all General and Sub-bids. The Towns shall provide their exemption 
certificate number to the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall pay all taxes required to be paid by 
CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are 

applicable during the performance of the Work. 

SP-2 



WEIGHING

All materials requiring payment by weight shall be weighed at a certified scale prior to delivery and the 
weigh slips shall be delivered to and signed by a Town representative. Each Town may provide use of its 
scale and require grass weights and vehicle tare weights verified at time of delivery. 

1VIISCELLANE0US

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding 
an another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically, but 
without limitation, moneys that may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited bylaw}, and unless specifically 
stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

The County and CONTRACTOR each binds himself, his partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives in respect to alI covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

This CONTRACT shall be deemed to include all terms and requirements imposed by laws related to the 
performance of the Work on the Project or Services. 

This is not an exclusive contract to provide services or materials to the County and Towns. The County and 
Towns reserve the right to contract for similar services or materials. 

INTEREST

All monies not paid when due hereunder shall bear interest at the maximum rate allowed bylaw at the place 
of the Project. 

SP-3 



ITEN~ 200 HOT MIJC ASPHALT (LOADED ON TOWN TRUCKS) 

Bituminous Concrete {Hat Mix Asphalt) shall be manufactured in conformance with the material, 
composition, mixing, testing and plant requirements of Standard Specification Section M3. Top course mix, 
binder course mix and dense mix shall be furnished, as required, and Ioaded on Town trucks. 

ITEM Z41 SAND BORROW 
ITEM Z02 LOAM BORROW 

Sand and Laam Borrow materials shall confarrn to the fallowing Standard Specifcation subsections: 

Sand Borrow -for Winter Maintenance - M 1.04.0 Type a (Washed) 
Loam Borrow - M 1.05.0 

Sand shall be washed and screened through a one quarter inch (1/4") screen. The sand must be coarse and 
free from clay, silty loam and other undesirable materials. Deliveries of sand shall be made during the 
vendor's normal business hours, Monday through Friday. A Town may require, at its discretion, that 
emergency deliveries must be made during other periods to include Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays and non-
business hours Monday through Friday at no extra cost to the Town. The vendor shall complete normal and 
emergency deliveries within a 12 hour period after receiving a request for delivery (maximum delivery 
1,000 tons per l2 hours). 

Loam borrow shall be screened to removed all stones and other material larger than I inch. 

ITEM Z03 1-1/Z" CRUSHED STONE (DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM Z04 3i4" CRUSHED STONE (DOUBLE WASHED) 
ITEM 20S 3/8" PEASTONE (ROUBLE WA}SHEP) 
ITEM Z06 3l4" DENSE GRADES CRUSHED STONE 

Aggregate materials shall conform to the following Standard Specification subsections: 

Crushed Stone - M 2.01.1 through 2.01.5 (double washed) 
Dense Graded Crushed Stone - M 2.01.7 {3/4") 

A requirement far all grades of crushed stone (except dense gaded) shall be that not more than 0.3°/a of 
unsatisfactory material shall pass a No.4 sieve. 

ITEM Z07 RECYCLED ASPHALT 

The recycled asphalt material shall meet the following gradation requirements: 

Sieve 
Designation 
3" 

1-I/2" 
3/4" 
#4 
#50 
#200 

Percentage By Weight 
Passing Through 

100 
70 -100 
50 - 85 
30 - 60 

8 - 24 
0- l0 

SP-0



The stone and sand material shall consist of inert material that is hard, angular, and durable, and free from 
cement concrete, brick, reinforcing steel, glass, wood, building rubble, loam and clay and other deleterious 
materials. Native round stone and materials that break up when alternately frozen and thawed or wetted and 
dried shall not be used. The material shag be "T-base" as manufactured by Aggregate Industries, Inc. or 
approved equivalent. 

Each stockpile shall be tested (at no additional cost to the Town} for sieve analysis and California Bearing 
Ratio (CBR) by an independent, qualified Massachusetts laboratory. The certified results shall be equal to 
or 

greater than that ofgravel borrow (M1.03.4 type b), and the certifications shall be supplied to each Town. 
The processed material shall be stockpiled in such a manner as to minimize segregation of particle sizes. 
All recycled pavement mate»al shall come from approved stockpiles. 

The material shall be subject to review and approval by a Town prior to delivery. 

ITEM 248 4'x4' PRECAST LEACH GALLEY 
ITEM 209 1.000 GALLON PRECAST CATCH BASIN 
ITEM 2I0 1,000 GALLON PRECAST LEACH PiT 
ITEM 211 4' DIAMETER PRECAST CATCH BASIN W/OFFSET TOP 

All precast structures shall be capable of withstanding H-241oading with a minimum concrete strength of 
4,000 psi (a~ 28 days. Steel reinforcement shall be Grade d0 meeting ASTM-A-6I5 requirements. 

The 1,000 Gallon Precast Solid Catch Basin shall have a solid bottom or include a d' diameter Basin Pad 

meeting the same rquirements as the structures. The cost of the Base Pad shall be included with the cast of 

the Structure. 

The 4' Diameter Precast Catch Basin w/offset Top shall have separate tap with an offset opening. The 

structure shall have a 4 foot deep sump below the outlet pipe. 

The Town shall specify the hole diameter and hole Iocation(s} at the time of order. 

The manufacturer shall deliver the structure to the Town DPW or at the installation location as specified by 

the Town. 

Payment for the precast drainage structures shall be by the Contract Unit Price per Each delivered. 

SP-S 



BID FORM 
MATERIALS 

{UNIT PRICE WORK) 

State the Unit Hid Price (written in words and in numerals) for each Town listed {see Attachment A for 
Estimated Quantities). Bidders may wish to contact each Town to obtain actual quantities purchased 
during prior years. Bidders may bid on any or alI items for any or all Towns. Bid selection will be by each 
item and will be based on the lowest, qualified, responsible, and responsive bid far each item for each 
Town. 

Price Adiustments: The Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) method for calculating 
price adjustments due to cost fluctuations in liquid asphalt, Portland cement, diesel fuel, gasoline, and 
structural steel shall apply to this bid. The Liquid Asphalt adjustment shall apply to Hot Mix Asphalt 
(Loaded on Town Trucks) on orders greater than 100 tons where the adjus#ment resalts in a change 

in the Unit Price of 5% or mare. No other adjustments will made to the remaining bid items. 

The Liquid Asphalt price adjustment shall be based on the difference between the price at the time of the bid 

(base bid price) and the price an the date of paving. The Liquid Asphalt base bid price shall be the price 
posted on the MassDOT Website for the month of December, 2018. 

Tied Bids: In the case of tied bids, the County tied bid policy will be used to determine the awarded bidder. 

BF-~ 



ATTACHMENT A 
ROADWAY MATERIALS BID 

B1D FORM ANO ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 200 

Tvwn 

Barnstable 

Estimated 

Quantity 

750 

Bourne 400 

Brewster 

Hot Mix Asphalt (Loaded on Town Trucks) 

Unft 61d Price !n Words 

No Bid 

No Bid 

50o No Bid 

Chatham 1oD No Bid 

Dennis 

Harwich 

Soo No Bid 

10o No Bid 

Orleans 100 

Sandwich 700 

Yarmouth 

Item 201 

Town 

500 

Estimated 

Quantity 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

Sand Borrow 

Unlf B/d Price !n Words 

Bamstabte s00 Fifteen Dollars and Fifty Cents 

Brewster 2,000 Sixteen Dollars and Ninety-Five Cents 

Chatham 1,000 Eighteen Dollars and Ninety-Five Cents 

Dennis 

Item za2 

Town 

Barnstable 

zoo Fifteen Dollars and Ninety-Five Cents 

Estimated 
Quantity 

s00 

Brewster 100 

Loam Barrow 

Unlc Bld Price !n Words 

No Bid 

No Bid 

Chatham 200 No Bid 

Dennis 200 No Bid 

Sandwich 200 No Bid 

Per TON 

!n Numerals 

Per TON 

In Numerals 

$15.50 

$16.95 

$18.95 

$15.95 

Per TON 

In Numerals 

BF-



ATTACHMENT A 
ROADWAY MATERIA[S BID 

B1D FORM AND ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Item 203 
Estimated 
Quantity 

1-1/2" Gushed Stone (Double Washed) Per TON 

Town Unit 8Id Price !n Words fn Numerals 

Barnstable 100 Twenty-Four Dollars and Seventy Cents $24.70 

Bourne 30o Twenty-Two Dollars and Seventy Cents $22.70 

Brewster 50o Twenty-Seven Dollars and Seventy Cents $27.70 

Chatham 15o Twenty-Nine Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $29.25 

Dennis Soo Twenty-Six Dollars and Seventy-Cents $26.70 

sandwich 20o Twenty-Three Dollars and Seventy Cents $23.70 

Yarmouth soo Twenty-Five Dollars and Seventy Cents $25.70 

item 204 
Estimated 

Quantity 
3/4" Crushed Stone (Double Washed} Per TON 

Town Unit 81d Price In Words In Numerals 

Barnstable 50 Twenty-Six Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $26.25 

Bourne zoo Twenty-Four Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $24.25 

Brewster uo Twenty-Nine Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $29.25 

Chatham 5o Thirty Dollars and Seventy Cents $30.70 

Dennis zoo Twenty-Eight Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $28.25 

sandwich 20o Twenty-Five Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $25.25 

Yarmouth 5o Twenty-Seven Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $27.25 

Item 205 
Estimated 
Quantity 

3/8" Peastone (Double Washed) Per TON 

Town Unit 81d Price Jn Words !n Numerals 

Barnstable 5o Twenty-Six Dollars and Seventy Cents $26.70 

Brewster 25o Twenty-Nine Dollars and Seventy Cents $29.70 

Chatham ioo Thirty-One Dollars and Twenty-Five Cents $31.25 

Oennfs zoo Twenty-Eight Daliars and Seventy Cents $28.70 

sandwich loQ Twenty-Five Dollars and Seventy Cents $25.70 

Yarmouth 5o Twenty Seven Daflars and Seventy Cents $27.70 

BF- ~ 



A Partner9hja 

By  _ W ,(SEAL) 
(Firm Name) 

(General Partner Name and Signature) 

Business address: 

Phone No.:  

A CornornHon 

By  
Cape Cod Aggregates Corp. 

(Corporation Name) 

Massachusetts 

(State of Incorporation' 

By  Laura L. L. Peterson ~,;,:  ~ ~ 

(Name of person authorized to sign and Signature) 

{Corporate Seal) 

Attest 
(Secretary} 

Business address:  ~ 550 Phinneys Lane 

eamstabie, MA 02630 

Phone No.:  
50$-775-3716 



A Joint VenEure 

By 
{Name and Signatwc) 

(Address) 

BY  
(Name and Signature} 

(Address) 

{Each joint venture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and corporation that 
is party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.) 



PLEASE USE THIS AS THE COVER SHEET FOR-YOUR BIO 

CERTIFICATE of NON-CQLLUSION AND TAX COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to MGL Chapter 62C, Section 49A, I certify under the penalties of perjury that I, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, have complied with al! laws of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and 

remitting child support. 

I certify under the penafties of perjury that this bidlproposal has been made and submitted in good 

faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certificate, the word 

"person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, 

club or other legal organization, entity or group of individuals. 

Company: 
Cape Cod Aggregates Carp. 

1550 Phinneys Lane 
Address: 

Barnstable, MA 62630 

Signature of Individual Signing 

Bid, or Corporate O#ficer: ,~  ~ ,. ~, ! '~ ~-

508-775-3716 
Telephone Number:  

Social Security Number 

Or Federal Identification Number:  
04-2739365 

Oate:  
January 24, 2019 

Any peisvn or eorporatlon whkh hlh► to •x~cute Ihls doamant 

will b~ conaJdond a nen-nspo~Iw blddsr 

end vrlll bs rRJ~cted purs~nt to MGl Ghspter ~4, 39M. 

SF-S 









20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8g 
 

Authorizing the creation of a new fund for a grant from the Massachusetts 
Department of Environmental Protection to the County Health and Environment 
Department, for a Project on Reducing Phosphorus Impacts from Septic Systems 
Near Freshwater Lakes and Ponds-Defining BMPs in the amount of $96,603.54, 
through June 30, 2021 

  





Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Executive Qffice of Energy ~, Environmental Affairs 

Qepartment of Environmental Protection 
Central Regional Office • 8 New Bond Street, Worcester MA 01606. 508-792-7650 

Charles D. Baker 
Governor 

Karyn E. Polito 
Lieutenant Governor 

January 17, 2019 

John T. Yunits 
Barnstable County Administrator 
Barnstable County Complex 
3195 Main Street PO Box 427 

Barnstable MA 02630 

Matthew A. Beaton 
Secretary 

Martin Suuberg 
Commissioner 

RE: Project 19-02/319, Reducing Phosphorus Impacts from Septic Systems Near Freshwater 

Lakes and Ponds-Defining BMPs 

Dear Mr. Yunits: 

Enclosed for review, signature, and return are three copies of a proposed Contract and associated 

forms for the Reducing Phosphorus Impacts from Septic Systems Near Freshwater Lakes and 

Ponds-Defining BMPs Project, project number 19-02/319. 

Please complete and sign in blue ink the following forms and statements: 

1. Standard Contract Form 

Please return all three sets of contracts. A copy of the final approved contract will be returned to 

you with the Notice to Proceed letter. If you have any questions please contact me at 508-767-

2795. Thank you for your participation in the 319 Grant Program. 

Sincerely, 

- .~ - /--.~ . - - —~. 
~~ -~~ 

Malcolm M. Harper 

Department of Environmental Protection 

Encls. 

This information is available in alternate format. Call Michelle Waters-Ekanem, Diversity Director, at 617-292-5751. TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370 

MassDEP Website: www mass.govldep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

This form is jointly issued and published by the Executive Office for Administration and Finance (ANF) the Office of the Comptroller (CTR) and the Operational Services Division (OSD) 
as the default contract for all Commonwealth Departments when another form is not prescribed by regulation or policy. Any changes to the official printed language of this form shall be 
void. Additional non-conFlicting terms may be added by Attachment. Contractors may not require any additional agreements, engagement letters, contract forms or other additional 
terms as part of this Contract without prior Department approval. Click on hyperlinks for definitions, instructions and legal requirements that are incorporated by reference into this 
Contract. An electronic copy of this form is available at www.mass.gov/osc under Guidance For Vendors -Forms or www.mass.gov/osd under OSD Forms. 

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME: County of Barnstable COMMONWEALTH DEPARTMENT NAME: 

MMARS Department Code: Department of Environmental Protection 

Legal Address: (W-9, W-4,T&C): 3195 Main Street, Barnstable MA 02630-1105 Business Mailing Address: 8 New Bond Street, Worcester MA 01606 

Contract Manager: George Heufelder Billing Address (if different): 

E-Mail: gheufeldera(~barnstablecounty.orq Contract Manager: Christopher Palmer 

Phone: 508-375-6616 IFax: 508-362-2603 E-Mail: christopher.palmer@state.ma.us 

Contractor Vendor Code: VC6000194979 Phone: 617-292-5772 IFax: 617-292-5850 

Vendor Code Address ID (e.g. "AD001 "): AD01 MMARS Doc ID(s): CT EQE 5014 CTYBARNSTABLE1902319 

(Note: The Address Id Must be set up for EFT payments.) RFR/Procurement or Other ID Number: BWP RFR # 2018-08.319 

X NEW CONTRACT CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

PROCUREMENT OR EXCEPTION TYPE: (Check one option only) Enter Current Contract End Date Priorto Amendment:_, 20_ 

Statewide Contract (OSD or an OSD-designated Department) Enter Amendment Amount: $ . (or "no change") 
Collective Purchase (Attach OSD approval, scope, budget) AMENDMENT TYPE: (Check one option only. Attach details of Amendment changes.) 

X Department Procurement (includes State or Federal grants 815 CMR 2.00) Amendment to Scope or Budget (Attach updated scope and budget) 
(Attach RFR and Response or other procurement supporting documentation) 

Emergency Contract (Attach justification for emergency, scope, budget) 
Interim Contract (Attach justification for Interim Contract and updated scope/budget) 

Contract Employee (Attach any updates to scope or budget) Contract Employee (Attach Employment Status Form scope, budget) 
LegislativelLegal orOther: (Attach authorizing languageljustification, scope and LegislativelLegal orOther: (Attach authorizing language/justification and updated 
budget) scope and budget) 

The following COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS (T8C) has been executed, filed with CTR and is incorporated by reference into this Contract. 

For Human and Social Services X Commonwealth Terms and Conditions Commonwealth Terms and Conditions 

COMPENSATION: (Check ONE option): The Department certifes that payments for authorized performance accepted in accordance with the terms of this Contract will be supported 
subject to intercept for Commonwealth owed debts under 815 CMR 9.00. 

conditions or terms and any changes if rates or terms are being amended.) 
of this Contract (or newTotal if Contract is being amended). $96,603.54. 

in the state accounting system by sufficient appropriations or other non-appropriated funds, 
Rate Contract (No Maximum Obligation. Attach details of all rates, units, calculations, 

X Maximum Obligation Contract Enter Total Maximum Obligation for total duration 

PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNTS (PPD): Commonwealth payments are issued through 
r 

EFT 45 days from invoice receipt. Contractors requesting accelerated payments must 
within 15 days _ %PPD; Payment issued within 20 days _ %PPD; Payment issued within 

45 day cycle _ statutoryllegal or Ready Payments (G.L. c. 29, § 23A); only initial 
identify a PPD as follows: Payment issued within 10 days _% PPD; Payment issued 
30 days _%PPD. If PPD percentages are left blank, identify reason: X agree to standard 
pa ment (subsequent pa ments scheduled to support standard EFT 45 day payment c cle. See Prompt Pay Discounts Polic .) 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE or REASON FOR AMENDMENT: (Enter the Contract title, purpose, fiscal years) and a detailed description of the scope 
of performance or what is being amended for a Contract Amendment. Attach all supporting documentation and justifications.) 
Project 19-02/319, Reducing Phosphorus Impacts from Septic Systems Near Freshwater Lakes and Ponds-Defining Best Management Practices grant project 

ANTICIPATED START DATE: (Complete ONE option only) The Department and Contractor certify for this Contract, or Contract Amendment, that Contract obligations: 

have been incurred prior to the Effective Date. X 1. may be incurred as of the Effective Date (latest signature date below) and no obligations 
2. may be incurred as of , 20_, a date LATER than the Effective Date below and no obligations have been incurred prior to the Effective Date. _ 

were incurred as of , 20 , a date PRIOR to the Effective Date below, and the parties agree that payments for any obligations incurred prior to the Effective Date are _3. 
authorized to be made either as settlement payments or as authorized reimbursement payments, and that the details and circumstances of all obligations under this Contract are 
attached and incorporated into this Contract. Acceptance of payments forever releases the Commonwealth from further claims related to these obligations. 

CONTRACT END DATE: Contract performance shall terminate as of June 30, 2021, with no new obligations being incurred after this date unless the Contract is properly amended, 
shall survive its termination for the purpose of resolving any claim or dispute, for completing 

invoicing or final payments, or during any lapse between amendments. 
provided that the terms of this Contract and performance expectations and obligations 
any negotiated terms and warranties, to allow any close out or transition performance, reporting, 

CERTIFICATIONS: Notwithstanding verbal or other representations by the parties, the "Effective Date" of this Contract or Amendment shall be the latest date that this Contractor 
or a later Contract or Amendment Start Date specified above, subject to any required 

Certifications (incorporated by reference if not attached hereto) under the pains and 
Amendment has been executed by an authorized signatory of the Contractor, the Department, 
approvals. The Contractor makes all certifications required under the attached Contractor 
penalties of perjury, agrees to provide any required documentation upon request to support 
business in Massachusetts are attached or incorporated by reference herein according 
Conditions, this Standard Contract Form including the Instructions and Contractor Certifications, 

compliance, and agrees that all terms governing performance of this Contract and doing 
to the following hierarchy of document precedence, the applicable Commonwealth Terms and 

the Request for Response (RFR) or other solicitation, the Contractor's Response, 
and additional negotiated terms, provided that additional negotiated terms will take precedence 
the process outlined in 801 CMR 21.07, incorporated herein, provided that any amended 

over the relevant terms in the RFR and the Contractor's Response only if made using 
RFR or Response terms result in best value, lower costs, or a more cost effective Contract. 

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE FOR THE COMMONWEALTH: AUTHORIZI NATURE FOR THE CO TRACTOR: 

X: ~ Date: ,1 -/~ /~ X: Date: 
ature a ate Must Be ndwritten At Time of Signature) 

m ame: ~/!n ~ ~U~f/1 

(Signature and Date Must Be Handwritten At Time of Signature) 

Print Name: Bawa Wavezwa 

rint Title: Print Title: Director COM Fiscal 

(Updated 3121/2014) Page 1 of 5 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS -" STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

INSTRUCTIONS AND CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATIONS 

The following instructions and terms are incorporated by reference and apply to this 
Standard Contract Form. Text that appears underlined indicates a "hyperlink" to an Internet 
or bookmarked site and are unofficial versions of these documents and Departments and 
Contractors should consult with their legal counsel to ensure compliance with all legal 
requirements. Using the Web Toolbar will make navigation between the form and the 
hyperlinks easier. Please note that not all applicable laws have been cited. 

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME (AND DIBIA): Enter the Full Legal Name of the 
Contractors business as it appears on the Contractor's W-9 or W-4 Form (Contract 
Employees only) and the applicable Commonwealth Terms and Conditions If Contractor 
also has a "doing business as" (d/bla) name, BOTH the legal name and the "d/b/a" name 
must appear in this section. 

Contractor Legal Address: Enter the Legal Address of the Contractor as it appears on 
the Contractors W-9 or W~ Form (Contract Employees only) and the applicable 
Commonwealth Terms and Conditions, which must match the legal address on the 10991 
table in MMARS (or the Legal Address in HR/CMS for Contract Employee). 
Contractor Contract Manager: Enter the authorized Contract Manager who will be 
responsible for managing the Contract. The Contract Manager should be an Authorized 
Signatory or, at a minimum, a person designated by the Contractor to represent the 
Contractor, receive legal notices and negotiate ongoing Contract issues. The Contract 
Manager is considered "Key Personnel" and may not be changed without the prior written 
approval of the Department. If the Contract is posted on COMMBUYS the name of the 
Contract Manager must be included in the Contract on COMMBUYS. 

Contractor E-Mail AddresslPhonelFax: Enter the electronic mail (e-mail) address, 
phone and fax number of the Contractor Contract Manager. This information must be kept 
current by the Contractor to ensure that the Department can contact the Contractor and 
provide any required legal notices. Notice received by the Contract Manager (with 
confirmation of actual receipt) through the listed address, fax number(s).or electronic mail 
address will meet any written legal notice requirements. 
Contractor Vendor Code: The Department must enter the MMARS Vendor Code 
assigned by the Commonwealth. If a Vendor Code has not yet been assigned, leave this 
space blank and the Department will complete this section when a Vendor Code has been 
assigned. The Department is responsible under the Vendor File and W-9s Policy for 
verifying with authorized signatories of the Contractor, as part of contract execution, that 
the legal name, address and Federal Tax Identification Number (TIN) in the Contract 
documents match the state accounting system. 

Vendor Code Address ID: (e.g., "AD001") The Department must enter the MMARS 
Vendor Code Address Id identifying the payment remittance address for Contract 
payments, which MUST be set up for EFT payments PRIOR to the first payment under the 
Contract in accordance with the Bill Pavinq and Vendor File and W-9 policies. 
COMMONWEALTH DEPARTMENT NAME: Enter the full Department name with the 
authority to obligate funds encumbered for the Contract. 
Commonwealth MMARS Alpha Department Code: Enter the three (3) letter MMARS 
Code assigned to this Commonwealth Department in the state accounting system. 

Department Business Mailing Address: Enter the address where all formal 
correspondence to the Department must be sent. Unless otherwise specified in the 
Contract, legal notice sent or received by the Department's Contract Manager (with 
confirmation of actual receipt) through the listed address, fax numbers) or electronic mail 
address for the Contract Manager will meet any requirements for legal notice. 

Department Billing Address: Enter the Billing Address or email address if invoices must 
be sent to a different location. Billing or confirmation of delivery of performance issues 
should be resolved through the listed Contract Managers. 
Department Contract Manager: Identify the authorized Contract Manager who will be 
responsible for managing the Contract, who should be an authorized signatory or an 
employee designated by the Department to represent the Department to receive legal 
notices and negotiate ongoing Contract issues. 
Department E•Mail AddresslPhonelFax: Enter the electronic mail (e-mail) address, 
phone and fax number of the Department Contract Manager. Unless otherwise specified in 
the Contract, legal notice sent or received by the Contract Manager (with confirmation of 
actual receipt) through the listed address, fax numbers) or electronic mail address will 
meet any requirements for written notice under the Contract. 
MMARS Document ID(s): Enter the MMARS .20 character encumbrance transaction 
number associated with this Contract which must remain the same for the life of the 
Contract. If multiple numbers exist for this Contract, identify all Doc Ids. 
RFRIProcurement or Other ID Number or Name: Enter the Request for Response 
(RFR) or other Procurement Reference number, Contract ID Number or other 
reference/tracking number for this Contract or Amendment and will be entered into the 
Board Award Field in the MMARS encumbrance transaction for this Contract. 

NEW CONTRACTS (left side of Form): 

Complete this section ONLY if this Contract is brand new. (Complete the 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT section for any material changes to an existing or an 
expired Contract, and for exercising options to renew or annual contracts under a 
multi-year procurement or grant program.) 

PROCUREMENT OR EXCEPTION TYPE: Check the appropriate type of procurement or 
exception for this Contract. Only one option can be selected. See State Finance Law and 
General Requirements, Acquisition Policy and Fixed Assets, the Commodities and 
Services Policy and the Procurement Information Center (Department Contract Guidance) 
for details. 
Statewide Contract (OSD or an OSD•designated Department). Check this option for a 
Statewide Contract under OSD, or by an OSD-designated Department. 

Collective Purchase approved by OSD. Check this option for Contracts approved by 
OSD for collective purchases through federal, state, local govemment or other entities. 

Department Contract Procurement. Check this option for a Department procurement 
including state grants and federal sub rants under 815 CMR 2.00 and State Grants and 
Federal Subgrants Policy, Departmental Master Agreements (MA). If multi-Department 
user Contract, identify multi-Department use is allowable in Brief Description. 

Emergency Contract. Check this option when the Department has determined that an 
unforeseen cdsis or incident has arisen which requires or mandates immediate purchases 
to avoid substantial harm to the functioning of govemment or the provision of necessary or 
mandated services or whenever the health, welfare or safety of clients or other persons or 
serious damage to property is threatened. 

Contract Employee. Check this option when the Department requires the performance of 
an Individual Contractor, and when the planned Contract performance with an Individual 
has been classified using the Employment Status Form (prior to the Contractors selection) 
as work of a Contract Employee and not that of an Independent Contractor. 

LegislativelLegal or Other. Check this option when legislation, an existing legal 
obligation, prohibition or other circumstance exempts or prohibits a Contract from being 
competitively procured, or identify any other procurement exception not already listed. 
Legislative "earmarks" exempt the Contract solely from procurement requirements, and all 
other Contract and state finance laws and policies apply. Supporting documentation must 
be attached to explain and justify the exemption. 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT (Right Side of Form) 

Complete this section for any Contract being renewed, amended or to continue a lapsed 
Contract. All Contracts with available options to renew must be amended referencing the 
original procurement and Contract doc ids, since all continuing contracts must be 
maintained in the same Contract file (even if the underlying appropriation changes each 
fiscal year.) "See Amendments, Suspensions, and Termination Policy.) 

Enter Current Contract End Date: Enter the termination date of the Current Contract 
being amended, even if this date has already passed. (Note: Current Start Date is not 
requested since this date does not change and is already recorded in MMARS.) 

Enter Amendment Amount: Enter the amount of the Amendment increase or decrease to 
a Maximum Obligation Contract. Enter "no change" for Rate Contracts or if no change. 
AMENDMENT TYPE: Identify the type of Amendment being done. Documentation 
supporting the updates to performance and budget must be attached. Amendment to 
Scope or Budget. Check this option when renewing a Contract or executing any 
Amendment ("material change" in Contract terms) even if the Contract has lapsed. The 
parties may negotiate a change in any element of Contract performance or cost identified 
in the RFR or the Contractor's response which results in lower costs, or a more cost-
effective or better value performance than was presented in the original selected response, 
provided the negotiation results in a better value within the scope of the RFR than what 
was proposed by the Contractor in the original selected response. Any "material" change 
in the Contract terms must be memorialized in a formal Amendment even if a 
corresponding MMARS transaction is not needed to support the change. Additional 
negotiated terms will take precedence over the relevant terms in the RFR and the 
Contractors Response only if made using the process outlined in 801 CMR 21.07 
incorporated herein, provided that any amended RFR or Response terms result in best 
value, lower costs, or a more cost effective Contract. 
Interim Contracts. Check this option for an Interim Contract to prevent a lapse of Contract 
performance whenever an existing Contract is being re-procured but the new procurement 
has not been completed, to bridge the gap during implementation between an expiring and 
a new procurement, or to contract with an interim Contractor when a current Contractor is 
unable to complete full performance under a Contract. 
Contract Employee. Check this option when the Department requires a renewal or other 
amendment to the performance of a Contract Employee. 
LegislativelLegal or Other. Check this option when legislation, an existing legal 
obligation, prohibition or other circumstance exempts or prohibits a Contract from being 
competitively procured, or identify any other procurement exception not already listed. 
Legislative "earmarks" exempt the Contract solely from procurement requirements, and all 
other Contract and state finance laws and policies apply. Attach supporting documentation 
to explain and justify the exemption and whether Contractor selection has been publicly 

(Updated 3/21/2014) Page 2 of 5 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

posted. 

COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Identify which Commonwealth Terms and Conditions the Contractor has executed and is 
incorporated by reference into this Contract. This Form is signed only once and recorded 
on the Vendor Customer File (VCUST). See Vendor File and W-9s Policy. 

COMPENSATION 

Identify if the Contract is a Rate Contract (with no stated Maximum Obligation) or a 
Maximum Obligation Contract (with a stated Maximum Obligation) and identify the 
Maximum Obligation. If the Contract is being amended, enter the new Maximum 
Obligation based upon the increase or decreasing Amendment. The Total Maximum 
Obligation must reflect the total funding for the dates of service under the contract, 
including the Amendment amount if the Contract is being amended. The Maximum 
Obligation must match the MMARS encumbrance. Funding and allotments must be 
verified as available and encumbered prior to incuring obligations. If a Contract includes 
both a Maximum Obligation component and Rate Contract component, check off both, 
specific Maximum Oblgation amounts or amended amounts and Attachments must clearly 
outline the Contract breakdown to match the encumbrance. 

PAYMENTS AND PROMPT PAY DISCOUNTS 

Payments are processed within a 45 day payment cycle through EFT in accordance with 
the Commonwealth Bill Paving Policy for investment and cash flow purposes. 
Departments may NOT negotiate accelerated payments and Payees are NOT entitled to 
accelerated payments UNLESS a prompt payment discount (PPD) is provided to support 
the Commonwealth's loss of investment earnings for this eartier payment, or unless a 
payments is legally mandated to be made in less than 45 days (e.g., construction 
contracts, Ready Payments under G.L. c. 29, s. 23A). See Prompt Pav Discounts Policy. 
PPD are identified as a percentage discount which will be automatically deducted when an 
accelerated payment is made. Reduced contracts rates may not be negotiated to replace a 
PPD. If PPD fields are left blank please identify that the Contractor agrees to the standard 
45 day cycle; astatutory/legal exemption such as Ready Payments (G.L. c. 29, & 23A); or 
only an initial accelerated payment for reimbursements or start up costs for a grant, with 
subsequent payments scheduled to support standard EFT 45 day payment cycle. Financial 
hardship is not a sufficient justification to accelerate cash flow for all payments under a 
Contract. Initial grant or contract payments may be accelerated for the first invoice or initial 
grant installment, but subsequent periodic installments or invoice payments should be 
scheduled to support the Payee cash flow needs and the standard 45 day EFT payment 
cycle in accordance with the Bill Paying Policy. Any accelerated payment that does not 
provide for a PPD must have a legal justification in Contract file for audit purposes 
explaining why accelerated payments were allowable without a PPD. 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

Enter a brief description of the Contract performance, project name and/or other identifying 
information for the Contract to specifically identify the Contract performance, match the 
Contract with attachments, determine the appropriate expenditure code (as listed in the 
Expenditure Classification Handbook) or to identify or clarify important information related 
to the Contract such as the Fiscal Years) of performance (ex. "FY2012" or "FY2012-14"). 
Identify settlements or other exceptions and attach more detailed justification and 
supporting documents. Enter "Multi-Department Use" if other Departments can access 
procurement. For Amendments, identify the purpose and what items are being amended. 
Merely stating "see attached" or referencing attachments without a narrative description of 
performance is insufficient. 

ANTICIPATED START DATE 

The Department and Contractor must certify WHEN obligations under this 
Contract/Amendment may be incurred. Option 1 is the default option when performance 
may begin as of the Effective Date (latest signature date and any required approvals). If 
the parties want a new Contractor renewal to begin as of the upcoming fiscal year then list 
the fiscal years) (ex. "FY2012" or "FY2012-14") in the Brief Description section. 
Performance starts and encumbrances reflect the default Effective Date (if no FY is listed) 
or the later FY start date (if a FY is listed). Use Option 2 only when the Contract will be 
signed well in advance of the start date and identify a specific future start date. Do not use 
Option 2 for a fiscal year start unless it is certain that the Contract will be signed prior to 
fiscal year. Option 3 is used in lieu of the Settlement and Release Form when the 
ContracUAmendment is signed late, and obligations have already been incured by the 
Contractor prior to the Effective Date for which the Department has either requested, 
accepted or deemed legally eligible for reimbursement, and the Contract includes 
supporting documents justifying the performance or proof of elgibility, and approximate 
costs. Any obligations incurred outside the scope of the Effective Date under any Option 
listed, even if the incorrect Option is selected, shall be automatically deemed a settlement 
included under the terms of the Contract and upon payment to the Contractor will release 
the Commonwealth from further obligations for the identified performance. All settlement 
payments require justification and must be under same encumbrance and object codes as 
the Contract payments. Performance dates are subject to G.L. c.4, § 9. 

CONTRACT END DATE 

The Department must enter the date that Contract performance will terminate. If the 
Contract is being amended and the Contract End Date is not changing, this date 
must be re-entered again here. A Contract must be signed for at least the initial duration 
but not longer than the period of procurement listed in the RFR, or other solicitation 
document (if applicable). No new performance is allowable beyond the end date without 
an amendment, but the Department may allow a Contractor to complete minimal close out 
performance obligations if substantial performance has been made prior to the termination 
date of the Contract and prior to the end of the fiscal year in which payments are 
appropriated, provided that any close out performance is subject to appropriation and 
funding limits under state finance law, and CTR may adjust encumbrances and payments 
in the state accounting system to enable final close out payments. Performance dates are 
subject to G.L. c.4, $ 9. 

CERTIFICATIONS AND EXECUTION 

See Department Head Signature Authorization Policy and the Contractor Authorized 
Signatory Listing  for policies on Contractor and Department signatures. 
Authorizing Signature for ContractorlDate: The Authorized Contractor Signatory must 
(in their own handwriting and in ink) sign AND enter the date the Contract is signed. See 
section above under "Anticipated Contract Start Date". Acceptance of payment by the 
Contractor shall waive any right of the Contractor to claim the ContractlAmendment is not 
valid and the Contractor may not void the Contract Rubber stamps, typed or other 
images are not acceptable. Proof of Contractor signature authorization on a Contractor 
Authorized Signatory Listing  may be required by the Department if not already on file. 
Contractor Name (Title: The Contractor Authorized Signatory's name and title must 
appear legibly as it appears on the Contractor Authorized Signatory Listing. 
Authorizing Signature For CommonwealthlDate: The Authorized Department Signatory 
must (in their own handwriting and in ink) sign AND enter the date the Contract is signed. 
See section above under "Anticipated Start Date". Rubber stamps, typed or other 
images are not accepted. The Authorized Signatory must be an employee within the 
Department legally responsible for the Contract. See Department Head Signature 
Authodzation. The Department must have the legislative funding appropriated for all the 
costs of this Contract or funding allocated under an approved Interdepartmental Service 
Agreement (ISA).  A Department may not contract for performance to be delivered to or by 
another state department without specific legislative authorization (unless this Contract is a 
Statewide Contract). For Contracts requiring Secretariat signoff, evidence of Secretariat 
signoff must be included in the Contract file. 
Department Name ITkle: Enter the Authorized Signatory's name and title legibly. 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATIONS AND LEGAL REFERENCES 

Notwithstanding verbal or other representations by the parties, the "Effective Date" of this 
Contract or Amendment shall be the latest date that this Contract or Amendment has been 
executed by an authorized signatory of the Contractor, the Department, or a later Contract 
or Amendment Start Date specified, subject to any required approvals. The Contractor 
makes all certifications required under this Contract under the pains and penalties of 
perjury, and agrees to provide any required documentation upon request to support 
compliance, and agrees that all terms governing performance of this Contract and doing 
business in Massachusetts are attached or incorporated by reference herein: 

Commonwealth and Contractor Ownership Rights. The Contractor certifies and agrees 
that the Commonwealth is entitled to ownership and possession of all "deliverables" 
purchased or developed with Contract funds. A Department may not relinquish 
Commonwealth rights to deliverables nor may Contractors sell products developed with 
Commonwealth resources without just compensation. The Contract should detail all 
Commonwealth deliverables and ownership rights and any Contractor proprietary rights. 

Qualifications. The Contractor certifies it is qualified and shall at all times remain qualified 
to perform this Contract; that performance shall be timely and meet or exceed industry 
standards for the performance required, including obtaining requisite licenses, 
registrations, permits, resources for performance, and sufficient professional, liability; and 
other appropriate insurance to cover the performance. If the Contractor is a business, the 
Contractor certifies that it is listed under the Secretary of State's website as licensed to do 
business in Massachusetts, as required by law. 

Business Ethics and Fraud, Waste and Abuse Prevention. The Contractor certifies that 
performance under this Contract, in addition to meeting the terms of the Contract, will be 
made using ethical business standards and good stewardship of taxpayer and other public 
funding and resources to prevent fraud, waste and abuse. 
Collusion. The Contractor certifies that this Contract has been offered in good faith and 
without collusion, fraud or unfair trade practices with any other person, that any actions to 
avoid or frustrate fair and open competition are prohibited by law, and shall be grounds for 
rejection or disqualification of a Response or termination of this Contract. 
Public Records and Access The Contractor shall provide full access to records related to 
performance and compliance to the Department and officials listed under Executive Order 
195 and G.L. c. 11, s.12 seven (7) years beginning on the first day after the final payment 

(Updated 3/21/2014) Page 3 of 5 



r 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

under this Contract or such longer period necessary for the resolution of any litigation, 
claim, negotiation, audit or other inquiry involving this Contract. Access to view Contractor 
records related to any breach or allegation of fraud, waste and/or abuse may not be denied 
and Contractor can not claim confidentiality or trade secret protections solely for viewing 
but not retaining documents. Routine Contract performance compliance reports or 
documents related to any alleged breach or allegation of non-compliance, fraud, waste, 
abuse or collusion may be provided electronically and shall be provided at Contractor's 
own expense. Reasonable costs for copies of non-routine Contract related records shall 
not exceed the rates for public records under 950 C.M.R. 32.00. 

Debarment. The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any of its subcontractors are 
currently debarred or suspended by the federal or state government under any law or 
regulation including, Executive Order 147; G.L. c. 29, s. 29F G.L. c.30, § 39R, G.L. c.149, § 
27C, G.L. c.149, & 44C, G.L. c.149, § 1486 and G.L. c. 152, s. 25C. 

Applicable Laws. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable state laws and 
regulations including but not limited to the applicable Massachusetts General Laws; the 
Official Code of Massachusetts Regulations; Code of Massachusetts Regulations 
(unofficial); 801 CMR 21.00 (Procurement of Commodity and Service Procurements, 
Including Human and Social Services)' 815 CMR 2.00 (Grants and Subsidies)• 808 CMR 
1.00 (Compliance, Reporting and Auditing for Human And Social Services)• AICPA 
Standards; confidentiality of Department records under G.L. c. 66A; and the 
Massachusetts Constitution Article XVIII if applicable. 

Invoices. The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the terms of the 
Contract and the Commonwealth Bill Paying Policy. Contractors must be able to reconcile 
and properly attribute concurrent payments from multiple Departments. Final invoices in 
any fiscal year must be submitted no later than August 15~ for performance made and 
received (goods delivered, services completed) prior to June 30~^, in order to make 
payment for that performance prior to the close of the fiscal year to prevent reversion of 
appropriated funds. Failure to submit timely invoices by August 15"' or other date listed in 
the Contract shall authorize the Department to issue an estimated payment based upon 
the Department's determination of performance delivered and accepted. The Contractor's 
acceptance of this estimated payment releases the Commonwealth from further claims for 
these invoices. If budgetary funds revert due to the Contractor's failure to submit timely 
final invoices, or for disputing an estimated payment, the Department may deduct a penalty 
up to 10%from any final payment in the next fiscal year for failure to submit timely invoices. 

Payments Subject To Appropriation. Pursuant to G.L. c. 29 § 26, § 27 and § 29, 
Departments are required to expend funds only for the purposes set forth by the 
Legislature and within the funding limits established through appropriation, allotment and 
subsidiary, including mandated allotment reductions triggered by G.L. c. 29, § 9C. A 
Department cannot authorize or accept performance in excess of an existing appropriation 
and allotment, or sufficient non-appropriated available funds. Any oral or written 
representations, commitments, or assurances made by the Department or any other 
Commonwealth representative are not binding. The Commonwealth has no legal 
obligation to compensate a Contractor for performance that is not requested and is 
intentionally delivered by a Contractor outside the scope of a Contract. Contractors should 
verify funding prior to beginning performance. 

Intercept. Contractors may be registered as Customers in the Vendor file 'rf the Contractor 
owes a Commonwealth debt. Unresolved and undisputed debts, and overpayments of 
Contract payments that are not reimbursed timely shall be subject to intercept pursuant to 
G.L. c. 7A, s. 3 and 815 CMR 9.00. Contract overpayments will be subject to immediate 
intercept or payment offset. The Contractor may not penalize any state Department or 
assess late fees, cancel a Contract or other services if amounts are intercepted or offset 
due to recoupment of an overpayment, outstanding taxes, child support, other overdue 
debts or Contract overpayments. 

Tax Law Compliance. The Contractor certifies under the pains and penalties of perjury 
tax compliance with Federal tax laws state tax laws including but not limited to G.L. c. 62C, 
G.L. c. 62C, s. 49A• compliance with all state tax laws, reporting of employees and 
contractors, withholding and remitting of tax withholdings and child support and is in good 
standing with respect to all state taxes and returns due; reporting of employees and 
contractors under G.L. c. 62E withholding and remitting child support including G.L. c. 
119A s. 12• TIR 05-11; New Independent Contractor Provisions and applicable TIRs. 
Bankruptcy, Judgments, Potential Structural Changes, Pending Legal Matters and 
Conflicts. The Contractor certifies it has not been in bankruptcy and/or receivership within 
the last three calendar years, and the Contractor certifies that it will immediately notify the 
Department in writing at least 45 days prior to filing for bankruptcy and/or receivership, 
any potential structural change in its organization, or if there is any risk to the solvency of 
the Contractor that may impact the Contractor's ability to timely fulfill the terms of this 
Contract or Amendment. The Contractor certifies that at any time during the period of the 
Contract the Contractor is required to affirmatively disclose in writing to the Department 
Contract Manager the details of any judgment, criminal conviction, investigation or litigation 
pending against the Contractor or any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, or 
subcontractors, including any potential conflicts of interest of which the Contractor has 
knowledge, or teams of during the Contract term. Law firms or Attorneys providing legal 

services are required to identify any potential conflict with representation of any 
Department client in accordance with Massachusetts Board of Bar Overseers (BBO) rules. 

Federal Anti-Lobbying and Other Federal Requirements. If receiving federal funds, the 
Contractor certifies compliance with federal anti-lobbying requirements including 31 USC 
1352; other federal requirements; Executive Order 11246; Air Pollution Act; Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act and Federal Employment Laws. 

Protection of Personal Data and Information. The Contractor certifies that all steps will 
be taken to ensure the security and confidentiality of all Commonwealth data for which the 
Contractor becomes a holder, either as part of performance or inadvertently during 
performance, with special attention to restricting access, use and disbursement of personal 
data and information under G.L. c. 93H and c. 66A and Executive Order 504. The 
Contractor is required to comply with G.L. c. 931 for the proper disposal of all paper and 
electronic media, backups or systems containing personal data and information, provided 
further that the Contractor is required to ensure that any personal data or information 
transmitted electronically or through a portable device be properly encrypted using (at a 
minimum) Information Technology Division (ITD) Protection of Sensitive Information, 
provided further that any Contractor having access to credit card or banking information of 
Commonwealth customers certifies that the Contractor is PCI compliant in accordance with 
the Payment Card Industry Council Standards and shall provide confirmation compliance 
during the Contract, provide further that the Contractor shall immediately notify the 
Department in the event of any security breach including the unauthorized access, 
disbursement, use or disposal of personal data or information, and in the event of a 
security breach, the Contractor shall cooperate fully with the Commonwealth and provide 
access to any information necessary for the Commonwealth to respond to the security 
breach and shall be fully responsible for any damages associated with the Contractor's 
breach including but not limited to G.L. c. 214, s. 3B. 

Corporate and Business filings and Reports. The Contractor certifies compliance with 
any certification, filing, reporting and service of process requirements of the Secretary of 
the Commonwealth, the Office of the Attorney General or other Departments as related to 
its conduct of business in the Commonwealth; and with its incorporating state (or foreign 
entity). 
Employer Requirements. Contractors that are employers certify compliance with 
applicable state and federal employment laws or regulations, including but not limited to 
G.L. c. 5, s. 1 (Prevailing Wages for Printing and Distribution of Public Documents); G.L. c. 
7, s. 22 (Prevailing Wages for Contracts for Meat Products and Clothing and Apparel); 
minimum wages and prevailing wage programs and payments; unemployment insurance 
and contributions; workers' compensation and insurance, child labor laws, AGO fair labor 
practices; G.L. c. 149  (Labor and Industries); G.L. c. 150A (Labor Relations) G.L. c. 151 
and 455 CMR 2.00 (Minimum Fair Wages); G.L. c. 151A (Employment and Training); _G L. 
c. 1518  (Unlawful Discrimination)' G.L. c. 151E (Business Discrimination); G.L. c. 152 
(Workers' Compensation)• G.L. c.153 (Liability for Injuries)• 29 USC c. 8 (Federal Fair 
Labor Standards)• 29 USC c. 28 and the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act. 

Federal And State Laws And Regulations Prohibiting Discrimination including but not 
limited to the Federal Equal Employment Oppurtunity (EEO) Laws the Americans with 
Disabilities Act,; 42 U.S.0 Sec. 12,101, et seq., the Rehabilitation Act, 29 USC c. 16 s. 794; 
29 USC c. 16. s. 701; 29 USC c. 14, 623; the 42 USC c. 45; (Federal Fair Housing Act); G. 
L. c. 1516  (Unlawful Discrimination)• G.L. c. 151E (Business Discrimination); the Public 
Accommodations Law G.L. c. 272, s. 92A• G.L. c. 272, s. 98 and 98A Massachusetts 
Constitution Article CXIV and G.L. c. 93, s. 103; 47 USC c. 5, sc. II, Part II, s. 255 
(Telecommunication Act; Chapter 149, Section 105D, G.L. c. 151 C, G.L. c. 272, Section 
92A, Section 98 and Section 98A, and G.L. c. 111, Section 199A and Massachusetts 
Disability-Based Non-Discrimination Standards For Executive Branch Entities, and related 
Standards and Guidance, authorized under Massachusetts Executive Order or any 
disability-based protection arising from state or federal law or precedent. See also MCAD
and MCAD links and Resources. 
Small Business Purchasing Program (SBPP). A Contractor may be eligible to 
participate in the SBPP, created pursuant to Executive Order 523, if qualified through the 
SBPP COMMBUYS subscription process at: www.commbuys.comond with acceptance of 
the terms of the SBPP participation agreement. 
Limitation of Liability for Information Technology Contracts (and other Contracts as 
Authorized). The Information Technology Mandatory Specifications and the IT Acquisition 
Accessibility Contract Language are incorporated by reference into Information Technology 
Contracts. The following language will apply to Information Technology contracts in the 
U01, UO2, UO3, U04, U05, U06, U07, U08, U09, U10, U75, U98 object codes in the 
Expenditure Class cation Handbook or other Contracts as approved by CTR or OSD. 
Pursuant to Section 11. Indemnification of the Commonwealth Terms and Conditions, the 
tens "other damages" shall include, but shall not be limited to, the reasonable costs the 
Commonwealth incurs to repair, return, replace or seek cover (purchase of comparable 
substitute commodities and services) under a Contract. "Other damages" shall not include 
damages to the Commonwealth as a result of third party claims, provided, however, that 
the foregoing in no way limits the Commonwealth's right of recovery for personal injury or 
property damages or patent and copyright infringement under Section 11 nor the 
CommonwealWs ability to join the contractor as a third party defendant. Further, the term 

(Updated 3/21(2014) Page 4 of 5 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS ~ STANDARD CONTRACT FORM 

"other damages" shall not include, and in no event shall the contractor be liable for, 
damages for the Commonwealth's use of contractor provided products or services, loss of 
Commonwealth records, or data (or other intangible property), loss of use of equipment, 
lost revenue, lost savings or lost profits of the Commonwealth. In no event shall "other 
damages" exceed the greater of $100,000, or iwo times the value of the product or service 
(as defined in the Contract scope of work) that is the subject of the cairn. Section 11 sets 
forth the contractors entire liability under a Contract. Nothing in this section shall limit the 
Commonwealth's ability to negotiate higher limitations of liability in a particular Contract, 
provided that any such limitation must specifically reference Section 11 of the 
Commonwealth Terms and Conditions. In the event the limitation of liability conflicts with 
accounting standards which mandate that there can be no cap of damages, the limitation 
shall be considered waived for that audit engagement. These terms may be applied to 
other Contracts only with prior written confirmation from the Operational Services Division 
or the Office of the Comptroller. The terms in this Clarification may not be modified. 
Northern Ireland Certification. Pursuant to G.L. c. 7 s. 22C for state agencies, state 
authorities, the House of Representatives or the state Senate, by signing this Contract the 
Contractor certifies that it does not employ ten or more employees in an office or other 
facility in Northem Ireland and 'rf the Contractor employs ten or more employees in an office 
or other facility located in Northem Ireland the Contractor certifies that it does not 
discriminate in employment, compensation, or the terms, conditions and privileges of 
employment on account of religious or political belief; and it promotes religious tolerance 
within the work place, and the eradication of any man'rfestations of religious and other 
illegal discrimination; and the Contractor is not engaged in the manufacture, distribution or 
sale of firearms, munitions, including rubber or plastic bullets, tear gas, armored vehicles or 
military aircraft for use or deployment in any activity in Northem Ireland. 
Pandemic, Disaster or Emergency Performance. In the event of a serious emergency, 
pandemic or disaster outside the control of the Department, the Department may negotiate 
emergency performance from the Contractor to address the immediate needs of the 
Commonwealth even if not contemplated under the original Contract or procurement. 
Payments are subject to appropriation and other payment terms. 
Consultant Contractor Certifications (For Consultant Contracts "HH" and "NN" and 
"U05" object codes subject to G.L. Chapter 29, s. 29A). Contractors must make required 
disclosures as part of the RFR Response or using the Consultant Contractor Mandatory 
Submission Form. 
Attomeys. Attomeys or firms providing legal services or representing Commonwealth 
Departments may be subject to G.L. c. 30, s. 65', and if providing litigation services must be 
approved by the Office of the Attorney General to appear on behalf of a Department, and 
shall have a continuing obligation to notify the Commonwealth of any conflicts of interest 
arising under the Contract. 
Subcontractor Performance. The Contractor certifies full responsibility for Contract 
performance, including subcontractors, and that comparable Contract terms will be 
included in subcontracts, and that the Department will not be required to directly or 
indirectly manage subcontractors or have any payment obligations to subcontractors. . 

EXECUTIVE ORDERS 
For covered Executive state Departments, the Contractor certifies compliance with 
applicable Executive Orders (see also Massachusetts Executive Orders), including but not 
limited to the specific orders listed below. A breach during period of a Contract may be 
considered a material breach and subject Contractor to appropriate monetary or Contract 
sanctions. 
Executive Order 481. Prohibiting the Use of Undocumented Workers on State Contracts. 
For all state agencies in the Executive Branch, including all executive offices, boards, 
commissions, agencies, Departments, divisions, councils, bureaus, and offices, now 
existing and hereafter established, by signing this Contract the Contractor certifies under 
the pains and penalties of perjury that they shall not knowingly use undocumented workers 
in connection with the performance of this Contract; that, pursuant to federal requirements, 
shall vedty the immigration status of workers assigned to a Contract without engaging in 
unlawful discrimination; and shall not knowingly or recklessly alter, falsify, or accept altered 
or falsified documents from any such worker 
Executive Order 130. Anti-Boycott. The Contractor warrants, represents and agrees that 
during the time this Contract is in effect, nelther it nor any affiliated company, as hereafter 
defined, participates in or cooperates with an international boycott (See IRC S 999(b)(31-
ll , and IRS Audit Guidelines Boycotts) or engages in conduct declared to be unlawful by 
G.L. c. 151 E, s. 2. A breach in the warranty, representation, and agreement contained in 
this paragraph, without limiting such other rights as it may have, the Commonwealth shall 
be entitled to rescind this Contract. As used herein, an affiliated company shall be any 
business entity of which at least 51% of the ownership interests are direc0y or indirectly 
owned by the Contractor or by a person or persons or business entity or entities directly or 
indirectly owning at least 51 % of the ownership interests of the Contractor, or which directly 
or indirectly owns at least 51 % of the ownership interests of the Contractor. 

Executive Order 346.  Hiring of State Employees By State Contractors  Contractor certifies 
compliance with both the conflict of interest law G.L. c. 268A specifically s. 5 (f) and this 
order; and includes limitations regarding the hiring of state employees by private 
companies contracting with the Commonwealth. A privatization contract shall be deemed 

(Updated 3/21/2014) Page 5 of 5 

to include a specific prohibition against the hiring at any time during the term of Contract, 
and for any position in the Contractor's company, any state management employee who is, 
was, or will be involved in the preparation of the RFP, the negotiations leading to the 
awarding of the Contract, the decision to award the Contract, and/or the supervision or 
oversight of performance under the Contract. 
Executive Order 444. Disclosure of Family Relationships With Other State Employees. 
Each person applying for employment (including Contract work) within the Executive 
Branch under the Governor must disclose in writing the names of all immediate family 
related to immediate family by marriage who serve as employees or elected officials of the 
Commonwealth. All disclosures made by applicants hired by the Executive Branch under 
the Govemor shall be made available for public inspection to the extent permissible by law 
by the official with whom such disclosure has been filed. 
Executive Order 504. Regarding the Security and Confidentiality of Personal Information. 
For all Contracts involving the Contractor's access to personal information, as defined in 
G.L. c. 93H and personal data, as defined in G.L. c. 66A owned or controlled by 
Executive Department agencies, or access to agency systems containing such infomtation 
or data (herein collectively "personal information"), Contractor certifies under the pains and 
penalties of perjury that the Contractor (1) has read Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
Executive Order 504 and agrees to protect any and all personal information; and (2) has 
reviewed all of the Commonwealth Information Technology Division's Security 
Policies. Noiwithstanding any contractual provision to the contrary, in connection with the 
Contractor's performance under this Contract, for all state agencies in the Executive 
Department, including all executive offices, boards, commissions, agencies, departments, 
divisions, councils, bureaus, and offices, now existing and hereafter established, the 
Contractor shall: (1) obtain a copy, review, and comply with the contracting agency's 
Information Security Program (ISP) and any pertinent security guidelines, standards, and 
policies; (2) comply with all of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Information 
Technology Division's "Security Policies") (3) communicate and enforce the contracting 
agency's ISP and such Secudty Policies against all employees (whether such employees 
are direct or contracted) and subcontractors; (4) implement and maintain any other 
reasonable appropriate security procedures and practices necessary to protect personal 
information to which the Contractor is given access by the contracting agency from the 
unauthorized access, destruction, use, modification, disclosure or loss; (5) be responsible 
for the full or partial breach of any of these terms by its employees (whether such 
employees are direct or contracted) or subcontractors during or after the term of this 
Contract, and any breach of these terms may be regarded as a material breach of this 
Contract; (6) in the event of any unauthorized access, destruction, use, modification, 
disclosure or loss of the personal information (collectively referred to as the "unauthorized 
use"): (a) immediately notify the contracting agency if the Contractor becomes aware of the 
unauthorized use; (b) provide full cooperation and access to information necessary for the 
contracting agency to determine the scope of the unauthorized use; and (c) provide full 
cooperation and akrpt5 to information necessary for the contracting agency and the 
Contractor to fulfill any notification requirements. Breach of these terms may be regarded 
as a material breach of this Contract, such that the Commonwealth may exercise any and 
all contractual rights and remedies, including without limitation indemnification under 
Section 11 of the Commonwealth's Terms and Conditions, withholding of payments, 
Contract suspension, or termination. In addition, the Contractor may be subject to 
applicable statutory or regulatory penalties, including and without limitation, those imposed 
pursuant to G.L. c. 93H and under G.L. c. 214, § 36 for violations under M.G.L c. 66A. 
Executive Orders 523, 524 and 526. Executive Order 526 (Order Regarding Non-
Discrimination, Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action which supersedes 
Executive Order 478). Executive Order 524 (Establishing the Massachusetts Supplier 
Diversity Program which supersedes Executive Order 390). Executive Order 523 
(Establishing the Massachusetts Small Business Purchasing Program.) All programs, 
activities, and services provided, performed, licensed, chartered, funded, regulated, or 
contracted for by the state shall be conducted without unlawful discrimination based on 
race, color, age, gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, 
religion, creed, ancestry, national origin, disability, veteran's status (including Vietham~ra 
veterans), or background. The Contractor and any subcontractors may not engage in 
discriminatory employment practices; and the Contractor certifies compliance with 
applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations governing fair labor and 
employment practices; and the Contractor commits to purchase supplies and services from 
certified minority or women-0wned businesses, small businesses, or businesses owned by 
socially or economically disadvantaged persons or persons with disabilities. These 
provisions shall be enforced through the contracting agency, OSD, andlor the 
Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination. Any breach shall be regarded as a 
material breach of the contract that may subject the contractor to appropriate sanctions. 



Attachment A 

Scope of Services 

Reducing Phosphorus Impacts from Septic Systems Near Freshwater Lakes and Ponds-Defining 
Best Management Practices 

19-02/319 

Introduction: 

This project will validate cost-effective Best Management Practices for protecting freshwater resources 
from phosphorus inputs from onsite septic systems. Phosphorus inputs to our region's freshwater lakes 
and ponds are often responsible for harmful algae blooms, anoxic events that cause fish kills, and 
reduced ecologically-stabilizing diversity. The project will pilot at least two advanced-treatment 
technologies to address the issue and in addition to demonstrate the efficacy of applying two shallow 
soils-based treatment technologies, which currently have General Use Approval in the Commonwealth, 
to attenuate phosphorus from onsite septic systems. As a result, the project will develop both a Best 
Management Strategy for protection of freshwater watersheds that depend on septic systems, and 

guidelines for BMP implementation. 

Phosphorus remains a key environmental stressor in freshwater lakes and ponds and can result in 

harmful algae blooms and periods of anoxia that result in fish kills and reduced ecosystem diversity. 

While some promising advanced onsite treatment technologies exist (there are presently two in the Pilot-
Approval stage in Massachusetts), communities are generally unaware of these and other more recently-

developed and promising technologies. One aspect of the proposed effort is to install and test these and 

selected other technologies in real situations to demonstrate their efficacy in reducing wastewater 

phosphorus. 

In addition to the dearth of available treatment technologies, phosphorus management from wastewater 

near ponds and lakes is hampered by the common practice of replacing native in-place soil in leaching 

fields with sand fill. Some of the most valuable and available partners in efforts to attenuate phosphorus 

are the qualities of our native soils located in the shallow A and B soil horizons. These soil layers are 

generally discarded for use due to their slower percolation rate, yet their shallow location and finer 

textures facilitates both the recycling of phosphorus into the plant biota and the impedance of their 

transport to the groundwater. Accordingly, this project will install available and DEP-approved shallow-

based systems in native shallow soil horizons and demonstrate the efficacy of this simple more-passive 

means of phosphorus attenuation. Focused education efforts will target boards of health and the 

engineering/design community to encourage this strategy for the protection of freshwater resources. 

Project Goals: 

The goals are to install at least four advanced onsite systems that purport to remove phosphorus and two 

to four shallow native-soil systems in watersheds of freshwater ponds in Barnstable County and 

demonstrate their efficacy in removing phosphorus. In addition, this project will encourage the 

community of engineers and system designers to consider the successful technologies in situations where 

their clients have septic systems near freshwater resources that may be impacted by phosphorus loading. 



Strategy: 

Install at least six new phosphorus removal septic systems at private residences, evaluate the phosphorus 

attenuation in each system and report findings. Prepare training materials for engineers and septic system 

installers that will enable a broader use of those technologies and strategies that are proven to reduce 

phosphorus inputs from septic systems. Present the information at two national-coverage conferences, at 

least five regional training sessions for health agents, system designers and regulators, and informational 

sessions held by town wastewater committees. Post all information on the Barnstable County website 

and various conference websites. 

Targeted Pollutants and Waterbodies: 

The target contaminant of this effort will be available phosphorus. Statewide Application. 

Scope of Services: 

The scope of services for this contract shall consist of the following tasks and deliverables as outlined 

below, consistent with the Grantee's technical proposal received on May 30, 2018 and as outlined in the 

RFR of April 5, 2018. In order for a deliverable to be considered complete under the contract, the 

deliverable must be completed in accordance with the contract specifications and contract schedule, 

must be approved by MassDEP. 

Task 1: Revision of Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) for MASSTC to accommodate sampling of 

non-proprietary passive phosphorus removal septic systems. 

Complete a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) for the sampling beneath soil absorption systems 

and the discharges from packaged phosphorus removal units that meets criteria set forth in EPA 

requirement documents. 

Deliverable 1: 

• MassDEP and EPA approved revised QAPP for the collection of water quality data, to be approved 
prior to the commencement of any sampling; 

• Using an appropriate method to determine results of anticipated pollutant load reductions achieved by 

septic systems implemented under this project. 

Task 2: Compile information for the public and prospective program participants regarding the 

demonstration program. These documents will serve the dual purpose of introducing and explaining the 

program to prospective participants and informing the public and the design engineering community of 
those aspects of the septic system design that promote phosphorus removal. 

Deliverable 2: Document in various levels of detail (dependent on audience) that explain the need for 
phosphorus removal, the techniques and various strategies for phosphorus removal, summaries of the 
state of the art, and engineering aspects of designing system to optimize phosphorus removal. 

Task 3: Recruit program participants, obtain permits, compile septic system plans and install six onsite 
septic systems that purport to attenuate phosphorus from onsite septic systems. Be present at Board of 
Health meetings at which projects are heard. Work with designers and vendors to optimize designs based 
on latest information 

Deliverable 3: Details/drawing and descriptions of the systems installed under the demonstration 
program. Descriptions of installation, costs for each step including O&M, and details of difficulties 
encountered. 



Task 4: Monitor the installed phosphorus-removal septic systems for a period of at least one year 
(monthly) in accordance with an accepted Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP). Influent and effluent 
(or alternately percolate) concentrations will be determined. 
Deliverable 4: Data reports will be posted regularly on a website. 

Task 5: Conduct outreach and education regarding the phosphorus treatment strategies and technologies. 
Conduct at least five presentations at regional conferences including the Onsite Wastewater Recycling 
Association affiliates, Commonwealth of Massachusetts training events and the Massachusetts Health 
Officers Association. Accommodate requests from local wastewater management groups and boards of 
health in Barnstable County for informational meetings regarding the work. In addition, summary sheets 
of all work conducted under this grant will be compiled and made and made available on the department 
website. Conduct three major workshops for engineers, designers and installers. These will be held by 
national and regional experts in soils and soils-based septic systems. Finally, there will be at least one 
submittal to peer reviewed environmental journals regarding the research on these systems. 
Deliverable 5: 

• Dates and times of presentations, web addresses of presentations, activity logs relative to the 
formation and vetting of design features, copies of research summary sheets. 

• Activity logs relative to the formation and vetting of design features for the non-proprietary systems, 
copies of research summary sheets. 

• Copies of outreach event announcements and numbers of attendees. 

• Copies of articles submitted for publication and webpage postings as updated by the Barnstable 

County Department of Health and Environment. 

Task 6: Reporting and Project Oversight 

The Grantee will submit the following deliverables to MassDEP in accordance with the Milestone 

Schedule in Attachment C: 

6a: Quarterly progress reports will be submitted to the 319 Project Officer. Quarterly reports must be 

submitted by email in a format compatible with the Department's software (MS Word unless 

otherwise specified). These reports must contain a summary of all work completed, by task and as a 

percentage of each task completed, during the reporting period; and planned activities for the next 

quarter. 

6b: The Invoice, Attachment for DM/DWBE Reporting, and Match Certification forms should be signed 

by the authorized signatory, scanned, and submitted via email to the Department's Contract 

Manager. Hard copies are not required. Supporting documentation can also be submitted via email to 

the Department's Contracts Manager. 

6c: Quarterly reports described above must be submitted to the Department within 15 days following the 

end of the reporting quarter (i.e.; by January 15th, April 15th, July 15th and October 15th of each year). 

6d: A draft final report shall be submitted to the 319 Project Officer for review and comment at least two 

(2) months prior to the contract end date. This report must include a description of all activities 

undertaken as part of the project and a summary of the project. 



6e: Two complete hard copies of the final report and three CDs with electronic versions of the final 

report will be submitted to the Department by the project end date. The electronic report shall be 

authored in MS Word and then converted to tagged PDF files for compatibility with the 

Department's Internet web site. CDs should include both Word and PDF versions of the report and 

other project deliverables as appropriate. 

Any files that are intended for publication on the MassDEP web site must comply with accessibility 

guidelines found at www.mass.gov/accessibility

Deliverable 6: 

1. Quarterly progress and fiscal reports. 

2. Draft and Final Report. 

Additional Contract Conditions 

1. Work undertaken as part of this grant project must exceed the requirements of the NPDES MS4 

permit, and cannot be credited toward meeting the requirements of that permit. 

2. All materials, software, maps, reports and other products produced through this contract shall be 

considered in the public domain and thus available at the cost of production. If GIS products are 

produced, a copy of any spatial data developed and full meta-data documentation must be provided 

as part of the project deliverables. A template for meta-data documentation is available from 

MassGIS. Data should be provided in either an ESRI file geo-database or shapefile. 

3. During the project, title to any and all real and personal property, equipment and accessories 

purchased and used for the project scope of work and funded in whole or part by this contract shall 

be in the name and control of the Grantee. 

4. After termination of the project, the manner of use and disposition of any equipment and accessories 

purchased and used for the project and funded in whole or part under this contract shall be 

determined by the Department. 

5. Grantees must immediately notify the Department of the loss or reassignment of any key employee 

or subcontractor identified in the proposal, and the Department requires that a replacement employee 

or subcontractor be assigned within 60 days. The Department reserves the right to terminate the 

contract if the Grantee fails to replace a key employee or subcontractor within this time frame or to 

substitute appropriately qualified key employee. 

6. Any changes to the contract scope of work or budget categories must be approved in writing by the 
Department. Requests for contract scope or budget modifications must be submitted in writing to the 
319 Project Officer for review and approval. 



7. The award of this Grant by the Department does not constitute a permit or any other approval that 
may be required for the implementation of the project funded by the Grant. The grantee shall timely 
obtain, and comply with, all federal, state and local permits and approvals required for the project. 

8. The Department reserves the right to approve the selection of all consultants or subcontractors. 

9. For any BMP installation funded under the 319 program, written certification that the system has 
been installed according to engineering and design specifications will be required from the designer 
or supplier of the technology. The certification must occur prior to the system being covered, buried, 
or otherwise made inaccessible, and shall occur in advance of release of payment for the system by 
the Department. 

10. Public Awareness Terms and Conditions 

• Prior written approval from the Department is required before material derived from the deliverables 
received under this Agreement is presented for publication or posted on the internet. An 
Acknowledgment of Support must be made in connection with the publishing or Internet posting of 
any material based on or developed under this Agreement. The acknowledgment will be in the form of 
a statement substantially as follows: "This project has been financed with Federal Funds from the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to the Massachusetts Department of Environmental 

Protection (the Department) under an s. 319 competitive grant. The contents do not necessarily reflect 
the views and policies of EPA or of the Department, nor does the mention of trade names or 
commercial products constitute endorsement or recommendation for use." 

• Statements to the press are authorized as long as proper acknowledgment is given to the Department 
and EPA. 

• Announcements: The grant recipient agrees that announcements through the web or print materials for 

Workshop, conference, demonstration days or other events as part of a project funded by a 319 

assistance agreement shall contain a statement that the materials or conference has been funded by the 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection and the United States Environmental 

Protection Agency. 

• Public or Media Events: The Recipient agrees to notify the MassDEP and EPA Project Officers of 

public or media events publicizing the accomplishment of significant events related to construction 

projects as a result of this agreement, and provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by 

state and federal representatives with at least ten working days' notice. 

• Limited English Proficiency Communities: To increase public awareness of projects serving 

communities where English is not the predominant language, recipients are encouraged to include in 

their outreach strategies communication in non-English languages. Translation costs for this purpose 

are allowable, provided the costs are reasonable. 



Attachment B 

Project Budget 

Reducing Phosphorus Impacts from Septic Systems Near Freshwater Lakes and Ponds-Defining Best 

Management Practices 

19-02/319 

Expense Items s.319 Amount Non-Federal 

Match 

Total Amount 

Salaries, Fringe and Overhead 

Project Manager $10,920 $3,640 $14,560 

Project Assistant $11,519.40 $7,679.60 $19,199 

Sample Collector $8,960 $8,960 

Grant Administration $8,782.14 $8,782.14 

Subtotal $40,181.54 $11,319.60 $51,501.14 

Subcontractual Services 

Construction of 6 Phosphorus Removal Units and $30,000 $101,000 $131,000 

Monitoring Ports 

Contract Services Training $11,000 $11,000 

Contract Services Analytical $10,176 $10,176 

Subtotal $51,176 $101,000 $152,176 

Travel ($.45/mile) $990 $990 

Miscellaneous Supplies $4,256 $4,256 

Sampling Supplies and Equipment 

Totals: $96,603.54 $112,319.60 $208,923.14 

Percent 46% 54% 100% 

The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise, (DBE) Program "Fair Share" goals for the project are: $8,775 for 

D/MBE (4.2%) and for $9,402 D/WBE (4.5%). Firms utilized in Federally Assisted Projects must be certified as 

either an MBE or WBE and a DBE. 

The Department will retain 10% of the total maximum obligation of the 319 grant funds or the final invoice 

submitted by the Grantee, whichever is greater, until all contract provisions are satisfied and final reports and 

other products are delivered and accepted. This 10% retainage shall be reflected on each invoice submitted by 
the Grantee and will be cumulative in the amount of $9,660 (10% of the contract amount. 



A
tt

a
c
h
m

e
n
t 

C
 

M
il

e
s
to

n
e
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 

U 
U 

... 

U 
CC 
i. 

a 

c 

a .~ 

A 

0 
a 
.a
C 
ca 

e~ 

~. 
~~ 
~ M 

~ N 
y O 
L 

(sr ,~~ 
i. 
CC 
6~ 

z 

E 

v 

O 
L 

w 

s. 
0 

0 

a, 

c ... 
U 
'~

'CS 

~~/ 
W 

N x X X x X 

N
fi

x
/ 

x x 

N fi

x
/ \/ 

X 
~

X
/ 

N r~, X X X 

N X x X x X 

X x X X 

X X X x 

x x X X 

x X X X X 

X x x x 

X X X X 

~ X X X X X 

X X X X 

X X X X 

X x X X X 

~ X ~ X X 

0o X X X X 

r X ~ ~ X X ~ 

X x x X X 

x X X x X 

X X X X X 

~, X X X X 

N X X X 

x X X X 

M
o
n
th

 

1
:Q

A
P

P
 

2
: 

C
o

m
p

il
e
 i

n
fo

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
sp

e
c
ti

v
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 

d
e
m

o
n

st
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
. 

M
e
e
t 

w
it

h
 h

o
m

e
o

w
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

h
o

m
e
o

w
n

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s.

 P
u

b
li

c
iz

e
 t

h
e
 

ro
'e

c
t.

 

3
: 
R

e
c
ru

it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
, 

o
b
ta

in
 p

e
rm

it
s,

 c
o

m
p

il
e
 s

e
p

ti
c
 

sy
st

e
m

 p
la

n
s 

a
n
d

 i
n
st

a
ll

 6
 o

n
si

te
 

sy
st

e
m

s 
th

a
t 

p
u

rp
o

rt
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
u
a
te

 

p
h
o
sp

h
o
ru

s.
 A

tt
e
n
d
 B

O
H

 

h
e
a
ri

n
g

s,
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 o

p
ti

m
iz

e
 

d
e
si

 
n
s 

4
: 

M
o
n
it

o
r 

th
e
 i

n
st

a
ll

e
d
 

P
h
o
sp

h
o
ru

s 
re

m
o

v
a
l 

sy
st

e
m

s 
fo

r 

a
 

e
ri

o
d
 o

f 
a
t 
le

a
st

 o
n
e
 

e
a
r 

5
: 
O

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 E

d
u
c
a
ti

o
n
 

E
ff

o
rt

s 

6
: 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

7
: 

G
ra

n
t 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 



CQMMQNWEALTH TERMS AND CQNDITIQNS 

This Commonwealth Terms and Conditions form is 

jointly issued by the Executive Office for 

Administration and Finance (ANF), the Office of the 
Comptroller (CTR) and the Operational Services 

Division (OSD) for use by al l Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts ("State") Departments and Contractors. Any changes or 

electronic alterations by either the Department or the Contractor to the 

official version of this jorm, as jointly published by ANF, CTR and OSD, 

shall be void Upon execution of these Commonwealth Terms and Conditions 

by the Contractor and filing as prescribed by the Office of the Comptroller, 

these Commonwealth Terms and Conditions will be incorporated by reference 

into any Contract for Commodities and Services executed by the Contractor 

and any State Department, in the absence of a superseding law or regulation 

requiring a different Contract form. Performance shall include services 

rendered, obligations due,. costs incurred, commodities and deliverables 

provided and accepted by the Department, programs provided or other 

commitments authorized under a Contract. A deliverable shall include any 

tangible product to be delivered as an element of performance under a 

Contract. The Commonwealth is entitled to ownership and possession of all 

deliverables purchased or developed with State funds. Contract shall mean the 

Standard Contract Form issued jointly by ANF, CTR and OSD. 

1. Contract E>)'ective Start Date. Notwithstanding verbal or other 

representations by the parties, or an earlier start date indicated in a Contract, 

the effective start date of performance under a Contract shall be the date a 

Contract has been executed by an authorized signatory of the Contractor, the 

Department, a later date specified in the Contract or the date of any approvals 

required by law or regulation, whichever is later. 

2. Payments And Compensation. The Contractor shall only be compensated 

for performance delivered and accepted by the Department in accordance with 

the specific terms and conditions of a Contract. All Contract payments are 

subject to appropriation pursuant to M.G.L. C. 29, §26, or the availability of 

sufficient non-appropriated funds for the purposes of a Contract, and shall be 

subject to intercept pursuant to M.G.L. C. 7A, §3 and 815 CMR 9.00. 

Overpayments shall be reimbursed by the Contractor or may be offset by the 

Department from future payments in accordance with state finance law. 

Acceptance by the Contractor of any payment or partial payment, without any 

written objection 6y the Contractor, shall in each instance operate as a release 

and discharge of the State from al l claims, liabilities or other obligations 

relating to the performance of a Contract. 

3. Contractor Payment Mechanism. All Contractors will be paid using the 

Payment Voucher System unless a different payment mechanism is required. 

The Contractor shall timely submit invoices (Payment Vouchers -Form PV) 

and supporting documentation as prescribed in a Contract. The Department 

shall review and return rejected invoices within fifteen (IS) days of receipt 

with a written explanation for rejection. Payments shall be made in 

accordance with the bill paying policy issued by the Office of the Comptroller 

and 8l5 CMR 4.00, provided that payment periods listed in a Contract of less 

than forty-five (45) days from the date of receipt of an invoice shall be 

effective only to enable a Department to take advantage of early payment 

incentives and shall not subject any payment made within the forty-five (45) 

day period to a penalty. The Contractor Payroll System, shall be used only for 

"Individual Contractors" who have been determined to be "Contract 

Employees" as a result of the Departrnent's completion of an Internal Revenue 

Service SS-8 form in accordance with the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 

COBRA) 1990, and shall automatically process all state and federal mandated 

payroll, tax and retirement deductions. 

4, Contract Termination Or Suspension. A Contract shall terminate on the 

date specified in a Contract, unless this date is properly amended in 

accordance with all applicable laws and regulations prior to this date, or unless 

terminated or suspended under this Section upon prior written notice to the 

Contractor. The Department may terminate a Contract without cause and 

without penalty, or may terminate or suspend a Contract if the Contractor 

breaches any material term or condition or fails to perform or fulfill any 

material obligation required by a Contract, or in the event of an elimination of 

an appropriation or availability of sufficient funds for the purposes of a 

Contract, or in the event of an unforeseen public emergency mandating 

immediate Department action. Upon immediate notification to the other party, 

neither the Department nor the Contractor shall be deemed to be in breach for 

failure or delay in performance due to Acts of God or other causes factually 

beyond their control and without their fault or negligence. Subcontractor 

failure to perform or price increases due to market fluctuations or product 

availability will not be deemed factually beyond the Contractor's control. 

5. Written Notice. Any notice shall be deemed delivered and received when 

submitted in writing in person or when delivered by any other appropriate 

method evidencing actual receipt by the Department or the Contractor. Any 

written notice of termination or suspension delivered to the Contractor shall 

state the effective date and period of the notice, the reasons for the termination 

or suspension, if applicable, any alleged breach or failure to perform, a 

reasonable period to cure any alleged breach or failure to perform, if 

applicable, and any instructions or restrictions concerning allowable activities, 

casts or expenditures by the Contractor during the notice period. 

6. Con(rdentia/itv. The Contractor shall comply with M.G.L. C. 66A if the 

Contractor becomes a "holder" of "personal data". The Contractor shall also 

protect the physical security and restrict any access to personal or other 

Department data in the Contractor's possession, or used by the Contractor in 

the performance of a Contract, which shall include, but is not limited to the 

Department's public records, documents, files, software, equipment or systems. 

7. Recorat-keeping And Retention, Inspection Ol Records. The Contractor 

shall maintain records, books, files and other data as specified in a Contract 

and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under a 

Contract, for a minimum retention period of seven (7) years beginning on the 

First day after the final payment under a Contract, or such longer period as is 

necessary for the resolution of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other 

inquiry involving a Contract. The Department shall have access, as well as any 

parties identified under Executive Order 195, during the Contractor's regular 

business hours and upon reasonable prior notice, to such records, including on-

site reviews and reproduction of such records at a reasonable expense. 

8. Assignment. The Contractor may not assign or delegate, in whole or in 

part, or otherwise transfer any liability, responsibility, obligation, duty or 

interest under a Contract, with the exception that the Contractor shall be 

authorized to assign present and prospective claims for money due to the 

Contractor pursuant to a Contract in accordance with M.G.L. C. 106, §9-318, 

The Contractor must provide sufficient notice of assignment and supporting 

documentation to enable the Department to verify and implement the 

assignment. Payments to third party assignees will be processed as if such 

payments were being made directly to the Contractor and these payments will 

be subject to intercept, offset, counter claims or any other Department rights 

which are available to the Department or the State against the Contractor, 

9. Subcontracting By Contractor. Any subcontract entered into by the 

Contractor for the purposes of fulfilling the obligations under a Contract must 

6e in writing, authorized in advance 6y the Department and shall be consistent 

with and subject to the provisions of these Commonwealth Terms and 

Conditions and a Contract. Subcontracts will not relieve or discharge the 

Contractor from any duty, obligation, responsibility or liability arising under a 

Contract. The Department is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and shall not 

be bound by any provisions contained in a subcontract to which it is not a 

PAY• 
10. A)rrmative Action, Non-Discrimination In Hiring And Employment 

The Contractor shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and 

regulations promoting fair employment practices or prohibiting employment 

discrimination and unfair labor practices and shall not discriminate in the 

hiring of any applicant for employment nor shall any qualified employee be 

demoted, discharged or otherwise subject to discrimination in the tenure, 

position, promotional opportunities, wages, benefits or terms and conditions of 

their employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, 

religion, disability, handicap, sexual orientation or for exercising any rights 

afforded by law. The Contractor commits to purchasing supplies and services 

from certified minority or women-owned businesses, small businesses or 

businesses awned by socially or economically disadvantaged persons or 

persons with disabilities. 

11. lndemniTcation. Unless otherwise exempted by law, the Contractor shall 

indemnify and hold harmless the State, including the Deparment, its agents, 

o[licers and employees against any and all claims, liabilities and costs for any 

personal injury or property damages, patent or copyright infringement or other 

damages that the State may sustain which arise out of or in connection with the 

Contractor's performance of a Contract, including but not limited to the 

negligence, reckless or intentional conduct of the Contractor, its agents, 

officers, employees or subcontractors. The Contractor shall at no time be 

considered an agent or representative of the Department or the State. After 

prompt notification of a claim by the State, the Contractor shall have an

opportunity to participate in the defense of such claim and any negotiated 

Page 1. of 2. 



COMMONWEALTH TERMS RNLI ~41~DITICINS 

settlement agreement or judgment. The State shall not 
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor azising 
under this paragraph. Any indemnification of the 
Contractor shall be subject to appropriation and 
applicable law. 

12 lYaivers. Forbearance or indulgence in any form or manner by a party 
shall not be construed as a waiver, nor in any way limit the legal or equitable 
remedies available to that party. No waiver by either party of any default or 
breach shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent default or breach. 
13. Risk OlLoss The Contractor shall bear the risk of loss for any Contractor 
materials used for a Contract and for all deliverables, Departrnent personal or 
other data which is in the possession of the Contractor or used by the 
Contractor in the performance of a Contract until possession, ownership and 
full legal title to the deliverables are transferred to and accepted by the 
Department. 
14. Foram, Choice o! Law And Mediation. Any actions arising out of a 
Contract shall be governed by the laws of Massachusetts, and shall be brought 
and maintained in a State or federal court in Massachusetts which shall have 
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. The Department, with the approval of the 
Attorney General's Office, and the Contractor may agree to voluntary 
mediation through the Massachusetts Office of Dispute Resolution (MODR) of 
any Contract dispute and will shaze the costs of such mediation. No legal or 
equitable rights of the parties shall be limited by this Section. 
1S. Contract Boilerplate /nterpretation, SeverabilitV, Conflicts firith Law 
Inteeration. Any amendment or attachment to any Contract which co 
conflicting language or has the affect of a deleting, replacing or modi ng : y 
printed language of these Commonwealth Terms and Conditions, as

CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY: 

Print Name: Jack Yunits 

Tide: Barnstable County Administrator 

Date: May 25, 2017 

(Check One): _X_ Organization Individual 

Full Legal Organization or Individual Name: Barnstable County 

Doing Business As: Name (If Different): 

Tax Identification Number: 04-6001419 

Address: 3195 Main Street ,Barnstable, MA 02630 

Telephone: 508-375-6771 FAX: 

published by ANF, CTR and OSD, shall be interpreted as superseded by the 
official printed language. If any provision of a Contract is found to be 
superseded by state or federal law or regulation, in whole or in part, then both 
parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision only to the 
extent necessary to comply with the superseding law, provided however, that 
the remaining provisions of the Contract, or portions thereof, shall be enforced 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. All amendments must be executed by 
the parties in accordance with Section 1, of these Commonwealth Terms and 
Conditions and filed with the original record copy of a Contract as prescribed 
by CTR. The printed language of the Standard Contract Form, as officially 
published by ANF, CTR and OSD, which incorporates by reference these 
Commonwealth Terms and Conditions, shall supersede any conflicting verbal 
or written agreements relating to the performance of a Contract, or attached 
thereto, including contract forms, purchase orders or invoices of the 
Contractor. The order of priority of documents to interpret a Contract shall be 
as follows: the printed language of the Commonwealth Terms and Conditions, 
the Standard Contract Form, the Department's Request for Response (RFR) 
solicitation document and the Contractor's Response to the RFR solicitation, 
excluding any language stricken by a Department as unacceptable and 
including any negotiated terms and conditions allowable pursuant to law or 
regulation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Contractor certify under the pains and 
penalties of perjury that it shall comply with these Commonwealth Terms 
and Conditions for any a . plicable Contract executed with the 
Corn ~~ ~ nw ~ h as certified ~ ' ~ eir authorized signatory below: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILING THE COMMONWEALTH TERMSAND CONDITIONS 

A "Request for Verification of Taxation Reporting Information" farm (Massachusetts Substitute W-9 Format), that contains the Contractor's 

correct TIN, name and legal address information, must be on file with the Office of the Comptroller. If the Gontractar has not previously 

filed this form with the Comptroller, or if the information contained on a previously filed form has changed, please fill out a W-9 form and 

return it attached to the executed COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

If the Contractor is responding to a Request for Response (RFR), the COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS must be submitted. 

with the Response to RFR or as specified in the RFR. Otherwise, Departments or Contractors must timely submit the completed and 

properly executed COMMONWEALTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS (and the W-9 form if applicable) to the: Payee and Payments Unit, 

Office of the Compho/ler, 9th Floar, One Ashburton Place, Boston, MA 02108 in order to record the filing of this form on the MMARS 

Vendor File. Contractors are required to execute and file this four► only once. 

Page 2. of 2. 



Ccrmrnonwealth of Masssachuselats 
Execwtiue Office of Energy & Envircr<nmerlGal Affairs 

Dep~r~rr~~r~~.~f Er~vironrn~r~~~l ~'ro~Gec~i~n 
One Winter Btreet Bosti~n, M;0. Q2408.647-292-55L10 

Char3es D, Baker 
Governor 

MatthawA, Beaton 
Secretary 

Karyn E. Polito Martin Suuberg 
Lieutenant Governor Commissioner 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/COMPLIANCE SIGN-OFF SHEEP 
INTERAGENCY SERVICE AGREEMENT {ISA}/SERVICE CONTRACT (SC) 

THIS SHEET MUST BE ATTAC ED TO ALL DOCUMENTS 

Name of Document:  Reducing Phosphorous Imuacts from Septic Systems Near Freshwater Lakes and 
Ponds-Defining BMPs 

Document ID:  2019-02/319

Contractor Name:  Barnstable County Department of Health and the Environment 

Document Type: ISA ( ) Service Contract (X } Grant Agreement ( ) 

Funding Source: State ()Federal { X) Trust () Bond ( ) 

Bureau Administering Document:  BWR 

Program Manager:  Malcolm Harper , 

Prime Contractor: D/MBE ( ) D/WBE ( ) 

Subcontractor: D/MBE: TBD 
DJWBE: TBD 

DJMBE Goal Amount: $8,774.77 (4,20Q/o) 
D/1lVBE Goal Amount: $9,401.54 (4.50%) 

.t:.~.~.r..~~..~~.~.~~~. APPROVED:  X  SEE BELOW:   ~•.~+~•F~•i`~.i:.~~..~ 

The Director of the Division of Fiscal Management and the Procurement Analyst have approved the 

attached document. This Agreement shall be governed by,.construed and enforced in accordance with 

the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and ali federal laws applicable to this contract. 

The grantee will allow applicable procurement regulations to comply with the minimum Disadvantage 

Minority and Women Business Utilization •oats of. 4.20% D/MBE and 4.50% D/WBE, unless 
otherwise noted. Any su+. utions •f D/ hWBE firms will require notification to the MassDEP. .• 

Reviewed b~ L._. ~ `~~ ~>~~ '~ ~► ~ `~----~ Date: 10 January 2019 
ing T. Slayman, Proc - ~ ent Anal 

Approved by: ~ , ~ r ~ ,tom `, pate: i0 January 2019 
Wavezw-, Director, Fiscal M: ~ ~gement 

This Information Is avaiia .le in alternate format Call Michelle Waters-Ekanem, Diversity Director, at 617-292-57$1. T7Y# MassRelay Service 1-600-439-2370 
MaSSDEP Website: www.mass.gov~dep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 



BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT 

POST OFFICE BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MA 02630 

May 23, 2018 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection 
Bureau of Water Resources 
8 New Bond Street 
Worcester, MA 01606 
Re: Document No. BRP-RFR-2017-06-319 
Attn: Malcolm Harper 

Mr. Harper: 

Email: gheufelder(o~barnstablecountv.orq
Web: www.barnstablecountvhealth.orq
Twitter: ~BCHDCapeCod 
Facebook: 

http://www.facebook. com/bchdcapecod 
Tel: 508-375-6616 

Barnstable County understands that Section 319 Nonpoint Source Competitive Grant 
Program asks for a good faith effort that minimum Fair Share Disadvantaged Minority 
and Women Business Enterprise goals will be met or exceeded for this project. 
Barnstable County, through its Department of Health and Environment plans to contract 
with DMBE/DWBE vendors for services related to the installation of septic system 
referenced in the proposal titled "Demonstration of Cost-effective Best Management 
Practices for Protecting Freshwater Resources from Phosphorus Inputs from Onsite 
Septic Systems during this project. The Fair Share utilization goals for this project are 
4.2% DMBE and 4.5% DWBE on the total project dollars. To comply with the 
DMBE/DWBE participation goals, it is anticipated that $ 8,775 for DMBE and $ 9,402 
DWBE will be adhered to. The specific categories will be in the contracting of 
alternative septic system installation to include excavators, electricians, and 
design engineers. All other services are proposed for in-house staff (such as laboratory 
services, monitoring and outreach). 

If you have any questions regarding this, please don't hesitate to ask. 

Regards 

Yunits% 
arnstab~e bounty Ad►~'iinistrator 



BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT 

POST OFFICE BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MA 02630 Email: gheufelder(D.barnstablecountv.orq

Web: www.barnstablecountvheaith.orq
Twitter: (a.BCHDCapeCod 
Facebook: 
http:!lwww.facebook. com/bchdca pecod 
Te1:508-375-6616 

Barnstable County has a statutory mandate under law to guarantee equal treatment for 
all who seek access to its services or opportunities for employment and advancement. 
No discrimination will be tolerated on the basis of race, creed, political affiliation, color, 
sex, national origin, age, or handicap. The ultimate goal is for personnel of this 
organization to reflect the proportions of minority, female, and handicapped persons in 
the populations they serve. 

Barnstable County will meet its legal, moral, social, and economic responsibilities for 
Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action as authorized and required by all 
pertinent state and federal legislation, executive orders and rules and regulations, 
including the following: 

1. Title {I of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC s2000e et  seq, which 
prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or 
national origin; and 

2. The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (29 USC s621 et seq.),
which prohibits discrimination in employment on the basis of age with regard to those 
individuals who are at least 40 years of age, but less than 65 years of age; and 

3. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC s794), and the 
regulations promulgated pursuant thereto (45 CFR Part 84), which prohibit 
discrimination against qualified handicapped individuals on the basis of handicap 
and requires employers to make reasonable accommodations to known physical or 
mental limitations of otherwise qualified handicapped applications and employees; 
and 

4. M.G.L. c. 151B s4 (1), as amended by Chapter 533, 1983, which prohibits 
discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, sex, religious creed, 
national origin, ancestry, age or handicap, 

In addition, the Provider agrees to be familiar with and abide by: 

• Massachusetts Executive Order 524 
• Massachusetts Executive Order 526 
• Equal Pay Act of 1963 
• Massachusetts Architectural Barriers Board Act 
• Federal Executive Orders 11246 and 11375 as amended. 



All employees, unions, sub contractors and vendors must make genuine and consistent 
efforts: 

1. To ensure equal employment opportunities for present and future employees, 
and 

2. To implement affirmative action, as legally required, to remedy the effects of 
past employment discrimination and social inequalities. 

The responsibility for implementing and monitoring this policy has been delegated to: 

Ms. Justyna Marczak, Human Resources Coordinator 

Furthermore, Ms. Justyna Marczak, prohibits that any employee, or applicant, be 
subjected to coercion, intimidation, interference or discrimination for filing a 
complaint or assisting in an investigation under this program. No portion of this 
Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action Policy shall be construed as 
conflicting with any existing or future judicial or legislative mandate where a 
constriction consistent with that mandate is reasonable. 

.,k~ ̀ ~~~C ~~l/1 
/, ;S~nature gf'C~ief Execu~i~ie 

~-''Barnstabl~County Administrator 

Date 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY LISTING 

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME : Barnstable County 
CONTRACTOR VENDOR/CUSTOMER CODE: 

Issued May 
2004 

INSTRUCTIONS: Any Contractor (other than asole-proprietor or an individual contractor) must provide a 

listing of individuals who are authorized as legal representatives of the Contractor who can sign contracts and 

other legally binding documents related to the contract on the Contractor's behalf. In addition to this listing, any 

state department may require additional proof of authority to sign contracts on behalf of the Contractor, or proof 

of authenticity of signature (a notarized signature that the Department can use to verify that the signature and 

date that appear on the Contract or other legal document was actually made by the Contractor's authorized 

signatory, and not by a representative, designee or other individual.) 

NOTICE: Acceptance of any payment under a Contract or Grant shall operate as a waiver of any defense by 

the Contractor challenging the existence of a valid Contract due to an alleged lack of actual authority to 

execute the document by the signatory. 

For privacy purposes DO NOT ATTACH any documentation containing personal information, such as bank 

account numbers, social security numbers, driver's licenses, home addresses, social security cards or any other 

personally identifiable information that you do not want released as part of a public record. The Commonwealth 

reserves the right to publish the names and titles of authorized signatories of contractors. 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY NAME TITLE 

Mary Pat Flynn Barnstable County Commissioner (Vice-chair) 

Leo Cakounes Barnstable County Commissioner (Chair) 

Ronald Beaty Jr Barnstable County Commissioner 

Jack Yunits County Administrator 

I certify that I am the President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Fiscal Officer, Corporate Clerk or Legal Counsel 

for the Contractor and as an authorized officer of the Contractor I certify that the names of the individuals 

identified on this listing are current as of the date of execution below and that these individuals are authorized to 

sign contracts and other legally binding documents related to contracts with the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts on behalf of the Contractor. I understand and agree that the Contractor has a duty to ensure that 

this listing is immediately updated and communicated to any state department with which the Contractor does 

business whenever the authorized signatories above retire, are otherwise terminated from the Contractor's 

employ, have their responsibilities changed resulting in their no longer being authorized to sign contracts with 

the Commonweal ~ or whenever new signatori ~ are designated. 

Date: May 29, 2018 

~tl- • Barnstp'(7lerounty Admni~i ator Telephone: 508-375-6771 

Fax: 508-3 -4136 Email: jack.yunits@barnstablecounty.org 

[Listing can not be accepted without all of this information completed.] 

A copy of this listing must be attached to the "record copy" of a contract filed with the department. 

Sensitivity level -low 



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY LISTING 

CONTRACTOR LEGAL NAME : Barnstable County 

CONTRACTOR VENDOR/CUSTOMER CODE: 

Issued May 

2004 

PROOF OF AUTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURE 

This page is optional and is available for a department to authenticate contract signatures. 

It is recommended that Departments obtain authentication of signature for the signatory 

who submits the Contractor Authorized Listing. 

This Section MUST be completed by the Contractor Authorized Signatory in presence of notary. 

Signatory's full legal name (print or type): John Thomas Yunits, Jr 

Title: Barnstable County Administrator 

pear on contract o~her document (Complete only in presence of notary): 

AUTHENTICATED BY NOTARY OR CORPORATE CLERK (PICK ONLY ONE) AS FOLLOWS: 

h  Qwe,n G . Fk~ch~r  (NOTARY) as a notary public certify that I witnessed 

the signature of the aforementioned signatory above and I verified the individual's identity on this date: 

Moy 2q> 201$ 

My commission expires on: 

AFFIX I~.T01'Alt`r' ~iF,AI.. 

I, (CORPORATE CLERK) certify that I witnessed the 

signature of the aforementioned signatory above, that I verified the individual's identity and confirm the individual's 

authority as an authorized signatory for the Contractor on this date: 

20 

AFFIX CORPORATE SEAL 

Sensitivity level -low 



P
l
e
a
s
e
 p
r
i
n
t
 o
r
 t
y
p
e
 

Form ~~~ 

(Massachusetts Substitute W-9 Form) 
Rev. April 2009 

Completed form should be 
given to the requesting 

department or the department 
you 8re Currently doing 
business with. 

Name (List legal name, rt Jdnt names, list first & drele the name of the person whose TIN you enter in Part I-See Specific Instructon on page 

COUNTY OF BARNSTABLE 
Business name, if different from above. (See Specific Instruction on page 2) 

Check the appropriate box: proprietor X Other ►GOVERNMENT 

Legal Address: number, street. and apt. or suite no. 

3195 MAIN STREET 

Remittance Address: if different from legal address number, street, and apt. or 

suite no P.O. BOX 427 

City, state and ZIP code 

BARNSTABLE, MA 02630 

City, state and ZIP code 

Phone # (508) 375-6645 Fax # (508) 362-4136 Email address: TRGGERS~BARNSTABLECOUNTY.ORG 

Part 1 Taxpayer Identification Number TIN) 

For individuals, this is your social 
a resident alien, sole proprietor, 

on 
ident~cation number (EIN). 

get a TIN on page 2. 
one name, see the chart on peg~e 2 

Social security number 
or 

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. 
security number (SSN). However, for 
dlaregarded entity, see the Part i Instruction 
page 2. For other entities: it Is your employer 
you do not have a number, see How to 
Note: Nthe account is in more than 

guidelines on whose number to enter. 

~ ~ ~_~ ~_~ ~ ~~ 
If 

OR 

for Employer identlfic

l

atlon fn~umber 

04-6001419 
Vendors: DUNS 
Dunn and Bradstreet Universal Numbering System (DUNS) 

076612407 
Certification 

Under penaRies of perjury, I certify that: 
1. The number shown on this form is my coned taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and 

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notfied by the internal Revenue 
Services (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has noted me that 
I am no bnger subject to backup withholding, and 

3. I am an U.S. person (including an U.S. resident alien). 

4. I am currently a Commonwealth of Massachusetts's state employee: (check one): No_ Yes If yes to comaliance with the State Ethics 
Commission requirements.

Certiflcatlon Instructlons: You must cross out item 2 above rf you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding 
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions; item 2 does not apply. 

Sign 
Here Authorized Signature ► ~--J

Purpose of Form 
A person who is required to file an information 
return with the IRS must get your correct 
taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for 
example, income paid to you, real estate 
transactions, mortgage interest you paid, 
acquisition or debt, or contritwtions you made to 
an IRA. 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person 
(inGuding a resident alien), to give your totted 
TIN to the person requesting it (the requester) 
and ,when applicable, to: 

1. Certify the TIN you are giving is corned (or 
you are waiting for a number to be issued). 

2. Certify you are not subject to backup 
withholding 

If you are a foreign person, use the 
appropriate Forth W-8. See Pub bib, 
Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and 
Foreign Corporations. 

What Is backup withholding? Persons making 
certain payments to you must withhold a 
designated percentage, curently 28°!o and pay to 
the IRS of such payments under certain 

Date ► 5~ a► (a o l 3 
Conditions. This is called "backup withholding." 
Payments that may be subject to backup 
withholding include Interest, dividends, broker and 
barter exchange transactions, rents. royalties, 
nonemployee pay, and certain payments from 
fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions 
are not subject to backup withholding. 

If you give the requester your totted TIN. make 
the proper certifications, and report all your 
taxable interest and dividends on your tax return, 
payments you receive will not be subject to 
backup withholding. Payments you receive will 
be subJect to backup withholding If: 

1. You do not famish your TIN to the 
requester, or 

2. You do not certify your TIN when required 
(see the Part II instructions on page 2 for 
details), or 

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished 
an incorrect TIN, or 

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to 
backup withholding because you did not 
report all your interest and dividends only), or 

b. You do not certify to the requester that you are 
not subject to backup withholding under 4 above 
(for reportable interest and dividend accounts 
opened after 1983 only). 

Certain payees and payments are exempt from 
backup withholding. See the Part II instructions 
on page 2. 

Penalties 

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to famish your 
correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a 
penalty of S50 for each such failure unless your 
failure is due to reasonable cause and not to 
willful neglect. 

Civli penalty for false Information with respect 
to withholding. If you make a false statement 
with no reasonable basis that results in no backup 
withholding, you are sut>jed to a $500 penalty. 

Criminal penalty for faisitying Information. 
Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations 
may subject you to criminal penalties inGuding 
fines and/or imprisonment. 

Misuse of TINs. ff the requester discbses or uses 
TINS in violation of Federal law. the requester may 

Form MA- W-9 (Rev. April 2009} 



20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8h 
 

Authorizing the execution of a cooperative agreement with the Town of Chatham 
to do and perform all dredge related work at Stage Harbor 

  



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 

AND 

TOWN OF CHATHAM 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this  ~ ~~  day of \~~G.~  , 2019 by and 

between the County of Barnstable, hereinafter called the "County," and the Town of Chatham. 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to have the County undertake the dredging projects covered by 

this agreement more specifically described by way of the attached plan pursuant to the terms and 

conditions directed herein. 

ARTICLE L STATEMENT OF WORK 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and in the interest of the mutual 

advantage in attainment of common objectives, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY AGREES: 

1. To do and perform all dredge related work for the Town of Chatham in accordance with 

the specifications, drawings and plans (Attachment I) up to a maximum contract amount 

of $390,000. This is based on removing up to approximately 30,000 cubic yards of 

material at $13.00 per cubic yard and the charge for mobilization/demobilization costs as 

set forth in Article III herein. Final and complete specifications, plans and drawings shall 

be provided to the County by the Town in a timely manner. 

2. To observe, comply with, and be subject to all terms, conditions, requirements, and 

limitations of the specifications, plans, drawings, and permits identified in Attachment I 

as applicable to dredging and rough placement of materials. 

3 To provide a hydraulic dredge and all related equipment to conduct maintenance 

dredging for the Town, according to and guided by the specifications, plans, drawings as 

provided. 

4. To pump dredge materials and provide rough beach placement of said materials at a rate 

of $13.00 per cubic yard for standard dredge material. This price includes before and 

after dredge surveys to be performed by the County. The County warrants that the final 

surveys are performed for the limited purpose of substantiating dredge volumes and 

under no conditions should said surveys be utilized to delineate navigable channels. The 

County shall provide the Town access to detailed survey work through Provincetown 

Coastal at the Town's request and at the Town's expense. 



5. To comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of 

any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from 

damage injury or loss or on dredging or handling of dredge materials. 

6. To the extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining 

damage or loss resulting from the negligence of the County and its employees with 

respect to the County's performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in 

the previous sentence shall be construed as a waiver of thelimitations on the Town's 

liability under the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act or under other provisions of this 

agreement. 

7. Immediately notify the Town and cease operations whenever the dredging operations 

exceed by more than 10 %the specifications, drawings and plans agreed to as the volume 

scope of the agreement or whenever situations or conditions are encountered outside the 

scope of the specifications, drawings, and plans that were nor reasonably foreseeable. 

The parties agree that variations on the scope of 10 %more than or less than the proposed 

scope of work is reasonable due to climatic and coastal changes and that price 
adjustments shall be made accordingly. The parties further agree that changes in excess 

of 10 %shall require the parties to adjust this contract in writing pursuant to Article V. 

8. Without the prior approval of the Town, the dredge will operate between the hours of 

7:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M, Monday through Sunday. 

THE TOWN OF CHATHAM AGREES: 

1. To obtain all required federal, state, and local permits and approvals to conduct the 

dredge project. 

2. To furnish all specifications, drawings, and plans required to perform the dredge project 

at the execution of this document. Said documents will be incorporated by reference as 

Attachment L 

3. To conduct required inspections and testing consistent with federal, state and local 

permits and approvals. 

4. To inspect the County's on-site dredging work in a timely manner. 

5. To obligate funds to conduct the dredging work specified in Attachment I. 

6. To indemnify and hold harmless any party sustaining damage or loss resulting from the 

negligence of the Town with respect to the Town's performance of its obligations under 

this Agreement. No provisions in this agreement or otherwise shall be construed as a 

waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability under the Massachusetts Tort Claims 



Act.. 

BOTH BARNSTABLE COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF CHATHAM AGREE: 

That nothing herein shall be construed as obligating either Barnstable County or the Town of 

Chatham to expend funds or to be obligated to spend funds beyond the scope of this contract. 

This AGREEMENT may only be modified in the form of amendments in writing by mutual 

agreement by both parties. Request for modification will be forwarded to one party by the other 

party by written notice. 

ARTICLE II. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT shall be effective when signed by all parties and shall remain in effect until 

the dredging identified in Attachment I is completed to the mutual satisfaction of all parties. 

ARTICLE III. PAYMENT TO COUNTY: 

The cost of the project shall be based on a per cubic yard basis, and calculated on the total cubic 

yards of material moved, using standard engineering practices, except as specified in Article 

VIII, and the mobilization and demobilization costs. The cost per cubic yard is $13.00. The 

Town shall be billed, and the County shall be paid for the following services: 

Mobilization costs for project is 0% of total cost 

100% movement/placement of dredge materials; 

Demobilization costs for the project is 0% of total cost 

The Town shall submit payment within 30 days of date of invoice to the County. Failure to pay 

said invoice within 30 days will result in the assessment of a late fee in the amount of 1%per 

month (12%annually) on the unpaid balance remaining after the 30th day. Said late fee will be 

assessed daily 0.033%. Failure to pay invoice within 90 days may result in legal action. The 

Town shall be responsible for all legal costs incurred by the County in collection of unpaid debts. 

ARTICLE IV. WEATHER CONDITIONS 

In the event of temporary suspension of work due to inclement weather conditions, the County 

shall cease work with no adverse consequences to the County. The decision to cease work shall 

be made by the County in consultation with the Town. 

ARTICLE V. CHANGES IN WORK 



No changes in the work covered by this Agreement shall be made without having prior written 

approval of both the Town and County. Costs for additional cubic yardage shall be determined 

utilizing the costs identified in Article III. 

ARTICLE VI. COUNTY INSURANCE 

The County shall maintain the following insurance coverage while conducting the dredge 

project: 

1. Compensation insurance. The County shall maintain during the life of this Agreement 

Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required by applicable state law. 

2. Protection and Indemnity insurance. 

3. General liability and excess liability insurance. 

4. Pollution insurance. 

5. Contingent watercraft liability insurance. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEMNIFICATION 

To the extent permitted by law, Barnstable County agrees to defend, indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless the Town of Chatham from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by third 

parties which may arise out of the negligent activities of Barnstable County or its employees 

while performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous sentence shall be 

construed as a waiver of the limitations on the County's liability under the Massachusetts Tort 

Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

To the extent permitted by law, the Town of Chatham agrees to defend, indemnify, 

defend and hold harmless Barnstable County from any claims, demands, suits or judgments by 

third parties which may arise out of the negligent activities of the Town of Chatham or its 

employees while performing its obligations under this Agreement. Nothing in the previous 

sentence shall be construed as a waiver of the limitations on the Town's liability under the 

Massachusetts Tort Claims Act or under other provisions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VIII TERMINATION 

This Agreement may only be terminated after written mutual agreement to do so by both parties. 

The Town shall pay the County all costs incurred by the County to the date of termination, 

including staff time, review of documents and any other costs associated with the project up to 

said termination. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the TOWN and the COUNTY execute this Agreement this 

  day of , 2019. 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS: 

Ronald Bergstrom 

Ronald Beaty 

Mary Pat Flynn 

Date 

TOWN OF CHATHAM: 

Date 

,^ , 

-rt~v► µ cm 
l~ 



20190320 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8i 
 

Authorizing the execution of Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
 



 
 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
COMMUNITY SEPTIC MANAGEMENT 

LOAN PROGRAM 
 

3195 MAIN STREET/ P.O.BOX 427 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 
 

Kendall Ayers Phone: (508) 375-6610 

Program Administrator  Fax: (508) 375-6854 

 www.barnstablecountysepticloan.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE: March 18, 2019 
TO: County Commissioners 
FROM: Community Septic Management Loan Program 
SUBJECT: Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments 
  

 
Please execute Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments certifying that the betterment assessments upon the 
hereinafter described parcels of real estate in the Notices of Betterment Assessment recorded in Barnstable 
County Registry of Deeds or Barnstable Registry District of the Land Court as listed below, stating that 
betterments to be assessed pursuant to a betterment agreement for septic improvements, in accordance with 
General Laws, Chapter 111, Section 127B 1/2 have, together with any interest and costs thereon, been paid or 
legally abated.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved: 
 
 
 
Board of Regional Commissioners 

 

Mary Pat Flynn, Commissioner Ronald R. Beaty, Vice-Chair Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

Date 



N
ot
ic
e 
of

Be
tt
er
m
en

t
As

se
ss
m
en

t
D
oc
um

en
t N

o.

D
ee

d 
Re

fe
re
nc
e

D
oc
um

en
t N

o.
D
ee

d 
Re

fe
re
nc
e

Ce
rt
ifi
ca
te
 o
f T

itl
e 
N
o.

N
ot
ic
e 
of

Be
tt
er
m
en

t 
As

se
ss
m
en

t
Bo

ok

N
ot
ic
e 
of

Be
tt
er
m
en

t 
As

se
ss
m
en

t
Pa

ge

D
ee

d
Re

fe
re
nc
e

Bo
ok

D
ee

d
Re

fe
re
nc
e

Pa
ge

O
w
ne

r(
s)
 N
am

ed
 in

 B
et
te
rm

en
t A

ss
es
sm

en
t

Lo
ca
tio

n 
of
 P
ro
pe

rt
y

X
X

X
27

10
9

95
91

26
24

1
Jo
hn

 A
. D

el
Si
gn

or
e

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 2
9,
 S
ec
tio

n 
05

 
Pa

rc
el
 0
09

, L
ot
 O
 1
5 

24
 C
ro
ss
 R
oa

d 
Ea
st
 F
al
m
ou

th
 (F

al
m
ou

th
)

X
X

X
24

08
2

33
2

15
08

4
83

Ro
be

rt
 R
. S
to
ut

Jo
an

 A
. S
to
ut
 

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 3
88

 P
ar
ce
l 2
9 

41
 S
ea
sid

e 
Av

en
ue

De
nn

is 

X
X

X
31

39
8

18
2

11
50

5
53

Fr
an

ce
s T

. W
hi
te

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 0
41

 
Pa

rc
el
 0
12

‐0
14

 
10

1 
Ch

er
ry
w
oo

d 
La
ne

 M
ar
st
on

s 
M
ill
s (
Ba

rn
st
ab

le
)

X
X

X
30

69
3

15
7

18
49

20
3

G
er
tr
ud

e 
A.
 S
no

w

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 8
7 

Pa
rc
el
 1
5 

34
 M

on
ta
gu

e 
Dr
iv
e 

W
es
t Y

ar
m
ou

th
 (Y

ar
m
ou

th
)

X
X

X
27

31
9

27
4

11
36

0
15

8
Ra

nd
y 
M
. M

en
ar
d

Su
za
nn

e 
L.
G
. M

en
ar
d

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 8
7 

Pa
rc
el
 1
66

 
51

 Q
ua

rt
er
m
as
te
r R

ow
So

ut
h 
Ya
rm

ou
th
 (Y

ar
m
ou

th
)

X
X

X
28

29
9

23
9

17
66

6
18

5
Sh

ei
la
 P
ar
en

te
au

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 1
44

Pa
rc
el
 1
15

 
28

 P
ly
m
ou

th
 R
oa

d
Ya
rm

ou
th
 P
or
t (
Ya
rm

ou
th
)

X
X

X
31

74
7

80
37

47
74

Ch
ris
tin

a 
A.
 M

ut
o

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 6
0

Pa
rc
el
 4
3 

9 
Hi
nk

le
 L
an

e
O
rle

an
s

X
X

X
31

07
8

19
19

24
29

8
Ri
ch
ar
d 
F.
 R
ub

in
o

Do
nn

a 
L.
 R
ub

in
o

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 1
17

Pa
rc
el
 V
30

 
2 
Co

ve
 R
oa

d 
Ea
st
 H
ar
w
ic
h 
(H
ar
w
ic
h)

12
05

22
8

10
61

67
2

Lo
t 1

0 
Pl
an

 3
10

43
‐A

18
28

62
X

X
X

X
Ch

ris
tin

e 
A.
 M

ea
de

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 1
68

Pa
rc
el
 1
9 

12
9 
Lu
m
be

rt
 M

ill
 R
oa

d
Ce

nt
er
vi
lle
 (B

ar
ns
ta
bl
e)

12
54

30

11
26

46
4

Lo
t 5

3
Pl
an

 6
13

9‐
N

Sh
 1
 

18
98

47
X

X
X

X
N
ea
l E
. S
ul
liv
an

Su
sa
n 
M
. S
ul
liv
an

As
se
ss
or
s M

ap
 5

Pa
rc
el
 4
1 

13
0 
Sn

ak
e 
Po

nd
 R
oa

d
Fo

re
st
da

le
 (S

an
dw

ic
h)

Ba
rn
st
ab

le
 R
eg

is
tr
y 
D
is
tr
ic
t o

f t
he

 L
an

d 
Co

ur
t

Ba
rn
st
ab

le
 C
ou

nt
y 
Re

gi
st
ry
 O
f D

ee
ds

CE
RT

IF
IC
AT

ES
 F
O
R 
D
IS
O
LV

IN
G
 S
EP

TI
C 
BE

TT
ER

M
EN

TS
 F
O
R 
03

/2
0/
19


	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Agenda_BRC_20190320_Regular_Revised
	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 5a_Minutes Draft_BRC_20190313_Regular
	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8a_General Approval_BC_ERIP_20190320
	20190320_Item 8a_General Approval_BC_ERIP_20190320
	DATE:
	March 18, 2019

	TO:
	County Commissioners

	FROM:
	Jack Yunits, County Administrator

	SUBJECT:
	Barnstable County Plan for the Early Retirement Incentive Program


	img03182019-114239
	Session Law - Acts of 2018 Chapter 330
	Item 6c_Discussion_BRC_ERIP_20190227

	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8b_Agreement_SL Environmental & Kennedy & Madonna_Addendum_20190320
	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8c_Reimbursement Request_CCC_Senatori_20190320
	20190320_Item 8c1_Reimbursement Request_CCC_Senatori_20190320
	20190311140520068
	20190311140616535
	20190311140712969
	20190311140730831

	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8d_Contract Award_Purchasing_Portable Toilets_20190320
	20190320_Item 8d_Contract Award_Purchasing_Portable Toilets_20190320
	DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

	20190320_Item 8d2_Contract Award_Purchasing_Portable Toilets_20190320

	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8e_Contract Execution_Purchasing_Aggregate Industries_Roadway Materials_20190320
	img03192019-155308
	65921485_notice_of_award_-_materials

	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8f_Contract Execution_Purchasing_Cape Cod Aggregates_Roadway Materials_20190320
	img03192019-155445
	65921485_notice_of_award_-_materials

	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8g_New Fund Request_HLTH_MADEP_Septic Systems_20190320
	65921485_tbd_tc18_new_fund_memo_3.12.19
	68686099_tbd_sfy2021_test_center_18_partially_executed_contract

	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8h_Agreement_Dredge_Chatham_Stage Harbor_20190320
	20190320_Board Packet_20190320_Regular
	20190320_Item 8i_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20190313
	DATE:
	March 18, 2019

	TO:
	County Commissioners

	FROM:
	Community Septic Management Loan Program

	SUBJECT:
	Certificates for Dissolving Septic Betterments


	20190320_Item 8i1_Certificates_HLTH_Septic_Dissolving Betterments_20190320

